
HOBBY AREA 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Agenda and Agenda Materials 
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

March 5, 2015 



HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE 

(HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT MEETING) 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hobby 
Area Management District will be held on Thursday, March 5, 2015, at 1:00 PM in the 
Doubletree Hilton Hobby - 8181 Airport Blvd, Houston, TX 77061, inside the boundaries of the 
District, open to the public, to consider, discuss and adopt such orders, resolutions or motions, 
and take other direct or indirect actions as may be necessary, convenient, or desirable with 
respect to the following matters: 

AGENDA 

1. Determine quorum; call to order. 
2. Receive public comments. 
3. Approve minutes of meeting held February 12, 2015. 
4. Receive Bookkeeper's Report and approve invoices for payment. 
5. Consider resolution, application, certificate of formation and bylaws pertaining to the 

creation of the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation. 
6. Consider mobile security camera contract with S.E.A.L. Security. 
7. Consider contract with Harris County with regard to the provision of County Nuisance 

Abatement Services. 
8. Receive update and discuss Memorandum of Understanding by and between Hobby 

District and Scenic Houston for the funding and maintenance of streetscapes on 
Broadway Blvd. 

9. Consider FY 2015 Annual Operating District Budget. 
10. Adjourn. 

Executive Director 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids or services are 
requested to contact the District's Executive Director at (713) 595-1200 at least three business days prior to the 
meeting so that the appropriate arrangements can be made. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

3. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Approve minutes of the meeting held February 12, 20~5. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HAiuUs COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

February 12, 2015 

1:10 p.m. Prior to Quorum 

RECEIVE UPDATE ON FUNDRAISING EFFORTS FROM SCENIC HOUSTON. 

A handout was distributed on the Broadway/Hobby Corridor Redevelopment Project, a copy is 
attached as Exhibit A. Anne Culver with Scenic Houston provided an overview of the project. Max Watson 
with Scenic Houston discussed the strategy, progress and fundraising efforts. They answered questions 
regarding the timeframe, donation goals and commitments in place. Mr. Hawes requested Ms. Culver to 
provide a second agreement ready for the Board to review at the next board meeting, including timeline 
expectations expected from Scenic Houston. 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER. 

The Board of Directors of the Hobby Area Management District held a regular meeting on Thursday, 
February 12, 2015, at 1 :00 p.m. in the Doubletree Hilton Hobby, 8181 Airport Blvd., Houston, Texas 77061, 
inside the boundaries of the District, open to the public, and the roll was called of the duly appointed 
members of the Board, to-wit: 

Position 1 -
Position 2 -
Position 3 -
Position 4 -
Position 5 -
Position 6 -

Danny Perkins, Chairman 
Helen Bonsall, Vice-Chair 
Todd Szilagyi 
Perry J. Miller 
Ann Collum 
Sue De Haven, Secretary 

Position 7 -
Position 8 -
Position 9 -
Position 1 O -
Position 11 -

Marjorie Evans 
vacant 
Darryl Bailey 
Vic J. Zachary 
Alberto Cardenas 

and all were present, with the exception of Directors Evans, Bailey and Zachary, thus constituting a quorum. 
Also present were David Hawes, Susan Hill, Josh Hawes, Linda Clayton, Gretchen Larson, Eoles Whitaker 
and Tony Allender, all with Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP; Clark Lord, Bracewell & Giuliani; Jack Roland, Roland 
Fry & Warren; and Jeff Sonnheim, Equi-Tax, Inc. Others attending the meeting were Anne Culver and Max 
Watson, both with Scenic Houston. Chairman Perkins called the meeting to order at 1 :30 p.m. 

RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

There were no public comments. 

APPROVE MINUTES OF MEETING HELD JANUARY 8, 2015. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director Bonsall, and being seconded by Director Collum, the Board 
voted unanimously to approve the Minutes of the January 8, 2015, Board meeting, as presented. 

RECEIVE BOOKKEEPER'S REPORT AND APPROVE INVOICES FOR PAYMENT. 

Mr. Roland presented the December 2014 Bookkeeper's Report, a copy is attached as Exhibit B, 
and went over invoices, included in the Board agenda materials. Mr. Sonnheim distributed the January 
2015 Assessment Collections Report, a copy is attached as Exhibit C. He reported 47% collected through 
January and reported as of today 88% had been collected on the 2014 assessments. Mr. Cardenas 
requested that Greater East End Management provide a report on the location of graffiti problems. Josh 
Hawes answered questions regarding the mobile security cameras. Upon a motion duly made by Director 



Miller, and being seconded by Director De Haven, the Board voted unanimously to accept the Bookkeeper's 
Report and approved payment of invoices. 

ACCEPT BOOKKEEPER/INVESTMENT OFFICER'S ANNUAL DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PUBLIC 
FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director Miller, and being seconded by Director De Haven, the Board 
voted unanimously to accept the Annual Disclosure under the Public Funds Investment Act from the 
Bookkeeper and Investment Officer, as presented. 

APPROVE RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY AND LIST OF 
QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS. 

Mr. Hawes reviewed the Resolution regarding annual review of Investment Policy and List of 
Qualified Broker/Dealers, included in the Board agenda materials. He reported he was recommending no 
changes to the Investment Policy. He reported Southwest Securities had merged with PlainsCapital Bank 
and he was recommending Southwest Securities be removed from the list of qualified broker/dealers. Upon 
a motion duly made by Director Collum, and being seconded by Director De Haven, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve the Resolution Regarding Annual Review of Investment Policy and List of Qualified 
Broker/Dealers as amended deleting Southwest Securities from the list of qualified broker/dealers. 

CONSIDER RESOLUTION, APPLICATION, CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION AND BYLAWS 
PERTAINING TO THE CREATION OF THE HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION. 

Mr. Hawes reviewed the documents, included in the Board agenda materials, and answered 
questions. Ms. Hill pointed out that the lncorporators must be residents of the District. Mr. Hawes reported 
this item would be put on the next Board meeting agenda for consideration to give the Board and attorney 
time to review the documents. No action from the Board was required. 

CONSIDER BROADWAY BLVD. FUNDING AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF HOUSTON 
AND HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT. 

Mr. Hawes reviewed the Funding Agreement, included in the Board agenda materials. He went 
over the duties of the District and answered questions. Upon a motion duly made by Director Cardenas, 
and being seconded by Director De Haven, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Broadway Blvd. 
Funding Agreement by and between the City of Houston and Hobby Area Management District with the 
District to fund $557,432.00 in accordance with the Agreement. 

CONSIDER MOBILE SECURITY CAMERA CONTRACT WITH S.E.A.L. SECURITY. 

Josh Hawes reviewed the Contract with S. E.A.L. Security for the mobile security cameras, included 
in the Board agenda materials. He reported the cameras have been installed for the last six months and 
no bills have been received from S.E.A.L. Security. After further discussion, the consensus was to have 
the Public Safety Committee review the Contract and bring back to the Board for approval at the next 
meeting. 

CONSIDER FY 2015 ANNUAL OPERTAING DISTRICT BUDGET. 

Mr. Hawes went over the proposed FY 2015 Annual Operating District Budget, included in the 
Board agenda materials, and answered questions. Director Miller discussed the Committee's 
recommendation to install newly designed signs to replace the current signs throughout the District. 
Funding of the project was discussed. There was general discussion regarding funding reserves. After 
further discussion, the budget was tabled and will be brought back to the next Board meeting for approval. 

RECEIVE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT ON ACTIONS/INITIATIVES IN SUPPORT OF 
THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE PLAN. 

2 



Mr. Hawes reported the State of District luncheon is being held on March 5, 2015, from 11 :30 to 
1 :00 p.m. at the Hobby Doubletree. He reported the Stakeholders meeting is scheduled for Mach 9, 2015, 
at the Doubletree Hilton from 6:30 to 8:30. There was general discussion regarding the next Board meeting 
and the consensus was to move the Board meeting to Thursday, March 5, 2015, at 1 :00 p.m. 

ADJOURN. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Perkins adjourned the 
meeting at 2:25 p.m. 

Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 

A. Presentation from Scenic Houston, Broadway/Hobby Corridor Redevelopment Project 
B. Monthly Financial Report, December 2014 
C. Assessment Collection Report, January 2015 

3 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

4. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARR!SCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the bookkeeper's report and approve invoices for payment. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

JANUARY 2015 



Hobby Area Management District 
Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
Amegy Bank 
Wells Fargo Bank 
Plains State Bank 
TexSTAR 

Total Checking/Savings 

As of January 2015 

Other Current Assets 
Assessment Receivable 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable 
Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 

Assessment Refunds Payable 
Deferred Assessment Revenue 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Restricted for management's use only 

Jan31,15 

19,236.64 
902,049.05 
245,000.00 

30,064.25 
1,196,349.94 

864,164.99 
864,164.99 

2,060,514.93 

2,060,514.93 

73,306.78 
73,306.78 

4,215.94 
1,434,091.49 
1,438,307.43 

1,511,614.21 

1,511,614.21 

465,177.82 
83,722.90 

548,900.72 

2,060,514.93 

Page1 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

January 2015 

Jan 15 Budget Annual Budget 
SOURCES OF FUNDS 

District Assessments 129,445.90 122,960.00 1,475,516.00 
Penalty & Interest Revenue 288.77 1,667.00 20,000.00 
Overpayments 162.77 1,167.00 14,000.00 
Assessment Refunds -4,215.94 -2,000.00 -24,000.00 
Street Light Reimbursement 0.00 11,223.00 134,678.00 
Grants and Donations 0.00 3,333.00 40,000.00 
Interest Revenue 27.63 25.00 300.00 

Total SOURCES OF FUNDS 125,709.13 138,375.00 1,660,494.00 

USES OF FUNDS 
Public Safety 

Contract Public Safety 10,570.50 16,848.00 202,180.00 
Apartment Life Initiatives 1,619.50 2,083.00 25,000.00 
Mobile Cameras 0.00 2,400.00 28,800.00 
Street Light Outage Survey 0.00 175.00 2,100.00 
Graffitti Abatement 2,560.00 2,792.00 33,500.00 

Total Public Safety 14,750.00 24,298.00 291,580.00 

Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 
Porter Service 5,416.67 4,375.00 52,500.00 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 5,416.67 4,375.00 52,500.00 

Business & Economic Development 
Economic Developmt Programs 75.00 13,500.00 162,000.00 
Events, Festivals, Comm. Proj. 141.27 3,083.00 37,000.00 
Creative ED Support 4,210.00 5,975.00 71,700.00 
Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 0.00 2,333.00 28,000.00 

Total Business & Economic Development 4,426.27 24,891.00 298,700.00 

Administration 
Exec & Board Support Services 

Administration & Management 9,292.00 9,292.00 111,504.00 
Meeting Expense 0.00 417.00 5,000.00 
Reimbursable Expenses 502.75 667.00 8,000.00 
Postage 59.47 8.00 100.00 
Office Supplies 530.48 117.00 1,400.00 
Public Notices, Advertising 9.19 100.00 1,200.00 

Total Exec & Board Support Services 10,393.89 10,601.00 127,204.00 

Legal Services 302.32 2,500.00 30,000.00 
Audit Services 0.00 250.00 3,000.00 
Bookkeeping 600.00 600.00 7,200.00 
Assessment Billing 1,699.08 1,875.00 22,500.00 
Assessmt Database Mgmt 300.00 300.00 3,600.00 
Office Equipment 0.00 250.00 3,000.00 
Insurance 0.00 125.00 1,500.00 
Other 48.00 58.00 700.00 

Total Administration 13,343.29 16,559.00 198,704.00 

Restricted for management's use only Page2 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

January 2015 
Jan 15 Budget Annual Budget 

Community Development Fund 
Hobby Fest 

Committee Support & Supplies 0.00 333.00 4,000.00 
Marketing & Promotional Items 0.00 1,333.00 16,000.00 
Creative Services 0.00 417.00 5,000.00 

Total Hobby Fest 0.00 2,083.00 25,000.00 

Other Community Projects 0.00 1,250.00 15,000.00 
Total Community Development Fund 0.00 3,333.00 40,000.00 

Total USES OF FUNDS - General Fund 37,936.23 73,456.00 881,484.00 

Excess (Deficiency) of Sources over Uses-GF 87,772.90 64,919.00 779,010.00 

Capital Projects 
Fund Reserve for District Office 0.00 4,167.00 50,000.00 
Broadway Blvd. Hardscape 0.00 46,453.00 557,432.00 
Livable Centers Frant Match 0.00 4,479.00 53,750.00 
CIP/Project Manager 4,050.00 4,050.00 48,600.00 

Total Capital Projects 4,050.00 59,149.00 709,782.00 

Total Excess (Deficiency) of Sources over Uses 83,722.90 5,770.00 69,228.00 

Restricted for management's use only Page3 



Hobby Area Management District 

Bank Account Registers 
As of March 5, 2015 

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance -
AmegyBank 27,368.86 

Debit 01/06/2015 Amegy Bank Wire transaction fee (13.00) 27,355.86 
Debit 01/06/2015 Amegy Bank Service charge (35.00) 27,320.86 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/13/2015 1199 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Officer security (10,570.50) 16,750.36 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/13/2015 1200 SMC Logostics Liter abatement of right-of-way (5,416.67) 11,333.69 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/17/2015 1201 Transportation Advocacy Group Membership/ Conference (1,600.00) 9,733.69 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/17/2015 1202 City of Houston Broadway Blvd/!H-45 to Airport (557,432.00) (547,698.31) 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/23/2015 1203 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Officer security (5,292.00) (552,990.31) 
Transfer 02/27/2015 Transfer from TexSTAR Transfer from TexSTAR 600,000.00 47,009.69 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1204 Amber Ambrose Hobby Fest Production (900.00) 46,109.69 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1205 Bracewell & Giuliani LLP General Counsel (1,481.10) 44,628.59 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1206 Chris Labod Website Maintenance (700.00) 43,928.59 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1207 Cracked Fox Website Maintenance (2,290.00) 41,638.59 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1208 Danny R. Perkins Toll road fee (1.75) 41,636.84 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1209 DoubleTree March 9th-Stakeholders Meeting (3,400.11) 38,236.73 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1210 DoubleTree March 5th-District Event/Meeting (4,978.08) 33,258.65 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1211 Equi-tax Inc. Roll Mgmt./ Assmt. Collections (6,818.46) 26,440.19 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1212 Gulfway-Hobby Airport Rotary Bronze Sponsorship (1,000.00) 25,440.19 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1213 VOID VOID 0.00 25,440.19 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1214 Independent Ins. Counselors Cert. of lns.-Signature Flight Support (393.42) 25,046.77 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1215 Magoo's Print Shop Business Cards (288.00) 24,758.77 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1216 Nathelyne A. Kennedy & Assoc. Broadway St/LED St Lights (18,871.30) 5,887.47 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1217 Perdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins Delinquent Collections (302.32) 5,585.15 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1218 Roland Fry & Warren, LLC January Bookkeeping (658.78) 4,926.37 
Transfer 03/05/2015 Transfer from TexSTAR Transfer from TexSTAR 50,000.00 54,926.37 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1219 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Officer security (5,886.00) 49,040.37 
Check 03/05/2015 1220 Flight Safety Inc. Refund: 7525 Fauna Street (300.00) 48,740.37 
Check 03/05/2015 1221 Rodriguez & Elena Y gnacio Refund: Westover (25.31) 48,715.06 
Check 03/05/2015 1222 Gulf 1688 LP Refund: 9010 Clearwood (104.19) 48,610.87 
Bill Pmt -Check 03/05/2015 1223 Hawes Hill Calderon LLC Management (18,487.45) 30,123.42 

Total Amegy Bank 2,754.56 30,123.42 

Restricted for management's use only Page4 



Type Date 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Deposit 01/31/2015 

Deposit 01/31/2015 

Debit 02/04/2015 

Debit 02/04/2015 

Transfer 02/26/2015 

Deposit 02/28/2015 

Deposit 02/28/2015 

Total Wells Fargo Bank 

Plains State Bank 
Total Plains State Bank 

TexSTAR-Operating 

Deposit 01/31/2015 

Transfer 02/26/2015 
Transfer 02/27/2015 

Total TexSTAR-Operating 

TOTAL 

Restricted for management's use only 

Num 

Hobby Area Management District 

Bank Account Registers 
As of March 5, 2015 

Name Memo 

Revenue Deposit 

Interest Jan. interest 

Returned Revenue Item Returned/Stop Pymt. Assmt Ck. 

Returned Revenue Item Returned/Stop Pymt. Assmt Ck. 

Transfer to TexST AR Transfer to TexSTAR 

Revenue Deposit 
Interest Feb. interest 

Interest Jan. interest 

Transfer from Wells Fargo Transfer from Wells Fargo 
Transfer to Operating Transfer to Operating 

Amount Balance 

172,476.34 
479,547.14 652,023.48 

25.57 652,049.05 

(4,641.53) 647,407.52 

(1,352.53) 646,054.99 

(700,000.00) (53,945.01) 

665,230.48 611,285.47 

41.76 611,327.23 

438,850.89 611,327.23 

245,000.00 
0.00 245,000.00 

230,062.19 
2.06 230,064.25 

700,000.00 930,064.25 

(600,000.00) 330,064.25 

100,002.06 330,064.25 

541,607.51 ___1,216,514.90 

Page 5 



INVOICE 

Amber Ambrose 
6431 Fairwood Dr. 
Houston, TX 77088 

amber@amberambrose.com 
361.813.6681 
amberambrose.com 

Client; 
Hobby Area Management District 
Invoice #219 

Date: 
February 25, 2015 

Project Description: 
PR, Social Media and Writing services for Hobby Fest Promol!on 

Hourly Charges or Project Fee: 
$900 (half of fee now. remaining half to be collected at close of project) 

Additional Charges or Reimbursements: 
$0 

Adjustments: 
$0 

Total Fee Due: 
$900 
Please send check to addressee/address above OR PayPal funds to 
amber@amberambrose.com. Thank you for your patronage! 

Hobby Area Management District 

Com .. 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 
A lTORNEYS AT LAW 

February 4. 201S 
lm·oice: 21606805 

, .. 0.60 

Total Curren! Dilling for this Mauer 

Balance Forward 

Total Current Billing fortltis Matter 

Please Remit Total Balance Due 

Billing Su,uman-· 

STATEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IS PAYA!lt.E UPON PRESENTATION INVOICE AMOUNT oue IN UNITED STATeS DOI.LARS 

S 1,481.10 

S l.48J.10 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 
AlTORNEYSATLAW 

P.o.ao,s.iass,; 
Ooll.u,Tl(752114-IIS66 

71l2?l-230!J 
TJUl0.74"10m21 

-----------------~Page i_ 
Hobby Area Management District 
711 Louisiana 
Suite 2300 
Houston, TX 77002 

Fcbruaty4,20!5 
Invoice: 21600&05 

BIA: 04674 

Our l>faucr #: 069002.00000! For Scrdces Through January 31, 2015 
General Counsel 

0!/081]5 

Ol/14115 

Ol/29115 

0!/30/15 

Pn:pare for and auend Soard mc-eiing 

Review email from S Hill <egllrding the 
request for agenda items for the Februa,y 
mecting-, calendar same 

Prepare for and attend meeting regarding 
Scenic Houston - Broadway funding 

Correspondence with S. Thorpe and H 
Lllttinier regarding Scenic Houston Funds 

Clari.: Stockton Lord 
Deborah Russell 

Hours 

Clark Stock(on Lord 2.00 

Dchorah Russell 0.25 

Clark Stockton Lord l.00 

Clark Stockton Lord 0.50 

Hours RateJ1-Ir Amount 
3.50 4SO.OO 1,575.00 

315.00 78.75 

R.a.u:/Hr 

450.00 

315.00 

450.00 

450.00 

__ .......Q,ll_ 
Tota! 3.75 --mso --l,653.75 

U:s~ Discount 

Total Fen for Profcssluual Scn,i.,... 

Reproductions 
01/02/!S llcprod11cLions EQUITRACCOPIES 

F«s for Profes~ional Sel'\'iecs •... 

6 pagosBATCH 2888Ho 

... s 1.480,50 

STATEMENT FOR PROfESS!ONAL SERV'.CES IS PAYA!ll.E UPON AAESOOATION INVOICE M!OUN'T DUE IN UNITED STATES DOLL.AAS 

Hcl>t,y Arc• MV1>g•m•n• Diltri« 
9610 L<>n, Point Rd~ Ste ISO 
Houo,~:1 TX 7705S 

Invoice 
Muoi. !.01, 
I",~'« N 20\S,~).h\< 
WeO,i<oM.Hc""-'>~c~ 

hr,:/qt)" 

00:00 $100.00 

Chris Labod 
1501 O«r Fore" Dr 

Spr;ng TX 77373 
(l&!J~S8-0Hl 

'"btc,.! 

$700.00 

Sobu,ul $700.00 

To«I due by M.r !S, 1015 $700.00 

Amoun1 

900.00 

78.75 

450.00 

225,00 

(!7J.2S) 

S 1,480.50 

Amount 

0.60 



helio! you have an invoice from: 
Cracked Fox 
14715 Carriage Park Dr. Humble, TX 77396 
Auru1;J;·CrackcdFox.com I BJZ.364.4012 I ww,;.Crili:i<~t!F,:,.,.cc01 

0..te ! lnvolce No. I Tenns 
01/31115 \ 514 ) 

BWTo: Paymonl!!ICredit• I Balance Ouc 
so.oo I $2,290.00 hoW, Arna DlS1fiCt 

f 
Hem ! Doscripllon 

iq" ] ;fobtw Fest IMterl1ead. Feh<ua,v 

,ig:, : ~~~:ewl:k::e:;1~~:~:!~n~latO of !11<; Ckstnc! 
;Des>gn I Print on<l web bcsed &;siqn fc, CM Galle_q<>S 
' : S1akehold<>,s. 2 vur:Hons. ! cJain ::rir>! for !J"l,hoc:se 
Desion ;creaM, re\,l'oductJon of HobbyfijSt loQo farorofl.e 
Oesig" i Dosi~n Flyer fo, BBQ Bani" in hoosa onmi,u: & 

· racabook 
D1slun '· Aov;ot« HotJ!J',, Mnn~r m,d Hv~r fer websit~ o/ 

. ,eo1>1coa WI in air<Jlana 

[ Sr,imli<lQ. Ma<l<ctm!l ond Rasc>1rch includlnq lopo 
I q,.mlilV ~soumrn:a in us:,q~ aw.I rncrea!ion of l(>f!Os 
i uo~d i~ <l>SWCt print cc:lat~ral 
, Euitin~. orooJ readi~Q. and ch~cki11q fm wobs•to. 

ir,fom1a1ior.1woerinl< imeQrilv 
Mee!irn:is, CarrnsoonOOrice. Phone Calis. and 

; Pl1o!Q\ll",wl,Y: WitiM,(color Co<rnctlcn. airb<ustiin!l. 
; ctOOPfoq etc.) for use in web and prin1 collateral 
I Ceotio:1lno ruid lfovworainq or Q'11k,rie; for dislri<:1 
\ usa!IO anct o~tcrM! sea<ch enoines. Archiv"'!l dislrict 
, irnaoes !o Mlemal harddrives. websites. mid OVDs 
for OOckuo 
P,oviditl!! r.cansir,q. stock Pnotcqrap,'w. er,d ~nne, 
1eq,1ost; and pdn1 r,.">Quesls. ~----

Quantity Rate Amount I 
2.41 ,00001 2~;m1 !.~1 100.00 tio.oo: 

,,I 100.co1 .'.!5C.ooi 

100.ool I ,;1 !00,001 
100.001 320.00! 

' 2.51 100-.ooj 250.CO: 

' ' 290.00\ 2.9) 100.ooj 
I i 
I 100.ooi 50-00( ] i i , 
' 

HXI.OOI, :m.ooj 
' 1()0.00! 0.5/ 

' 
:i-0.GO! 

·1 
!00.00) 100.t'O'i 

' I ' , 
' I 

-·---_j 
Total 

Pagel 

·.ii) ... •. 
DOUBLETREE w• ~,.,., •• ,, .. 

8181~- llol,alon,l)l;mllll 
Phono:1!~· Fu:71:M4$,l~t,g 

Banquet Check 

F&BAcci, 

Tax Exempt - Salas 

PnlfO 1 of2 

BEOI: 4705S 

Group Homo, Hobby~ Manag11tnent District 
Pmt "-"' Hobby Aleo ~gement Dl$tr1d 
Cllte,tng Mgr: Arl!lll, Thompson 

Sib, conu.ct MJ. Gietr:llco Lamm 

~~~' ,?,?~ -:..M1re1rrir ~,m"~i'iffl'.'tl'" """' M· Thursday, March OS, 2015 $:00 am 
ThundaY, Mardi OS, 2015 10:00 am 
Thursday.MarctiOS,2015 10;00 am 
Th~ay, Mrudi os, 2015 11:30 am 

BaltnlomABC 
Esplan,ide 
SdrocmABC 
Ba!ltoomABC 

'~'!!•••·.:. I~ - •"7''-- .·,,))ti. rt 
125 Chlcbn RUStlca 

TOTAL FOOD 
SERVICE OW.ROE% 

LCD Pack!lg~ lo fncludD: XGA (3000 lumen) LCD Ptojecto,, Prcjectlon cart wllh Skirt, &:nan, 2!/ VGA 
8deruilon Cable. Ex!eno!on Cord and Powe, Sl!lp 
Standing Podium 
~!eu ttandheld Mlcropl>one 

11 F1astiFbwerTableAming~ms 

Roon,: BallroomABC 
Roo~ E;plaoade 
Room: Ballroom ABC 
Room: Ba1t"10ITI ABC 

TOTAL MISCEUANEOUS 
SERVICE CHAR.GE% 

TOTAL MISCEl.lAN!:OUS 

F\111,tion:S!:T 
FW!cllon:REG 
Fun,:tion:MTG 
FtJnc110n:LUN 

Roomrenlaflu% 
SuP!'lemonbl iu % 

,,.. 
22.0~ 

. RE'£ 

400.00 

30.00 
130.00 

"'" 
28..00 

R• -

'·" '·" 

2,&66.15 

2,UU.75 
631.13 

)Jifr.9T~ 

800.00 

30,00 
130.00 

HO.OO 
:rn.20 

308.00 

30l.OO 

_iQ~;Q1'l\.lJ . 

0.00 
0.00 

3,4SU8 

":MUi 

1,171.20 

308..0~ 

Pag~ 1 ot2 

Bill To: 

hello! you have an invoice from: 
Cracked Fox 
14715 Carriage Park Or. Humble, TX 77396 
Roan@CrackMFo,.com I 832.354 . .:012 I w.vw.CrackadFo,.com 

Oate I lnV<>ice No. ! Terms 
01111/IS I SH I 

Paymen!s1Crcdi1• I Batance Oue 

so.oo I 52,:wo.oo 

f~ Item "------'Do•'c'c''c"c'oooc_ ____ --+---'o","'"c'c;ty'-+--""'o'c'_ ~-~~t_J ; Social m<>C!la: Foceoook/1wi!ter/pln1~,eslf,nsta~ram 2 5 i 100.00/, 200 00 

I' 
u:Jdates. photOllalleriO$. oostinQ. :an;:i;n~. creation ol \ · ! '. ~::::.4;~ i:;~~~;:~:~'.;~ff::·wl>lck. ,,;t~ ,.,1 ,00.001! ,ec-.;estSJQIJ<!stio<>s.. 

I' : Prl!<l and Web rescMlo., cr.:rnt;oo o! 1;1es '" wow, 
rc,mats le< ci,smbulion m ;,,in1cm, web oove!opers. ! ; oa.<tne,s and Sia!/. 'i I C " -

0.00%
1
, ·--·- / ' 

I 

I 

, __ C·u.ili0<...J1.''. ····--·--·~---~--

7fta,rt,'}oujotJou1bu&i1<e11--

Group N..,,., Hobby Ate~ Man.lgem,,nt mwict 
Poll M: Hofl.by Area Managoment Oistrli:t 
C•!&Of!"II Mar. Mg(e Thofl'l)IOn 

Page 2 

Total 

1'&111=!: 
SIio Conloct: M5. Gn!lchen l.aQoJ1 

Grand Toll!; 

120.00/ 

o.oo: 

··-··--"_J 
$2,290.00 

4,nt.ca 

4,979.0S 

........ ~~.!!!.~.of2 



.fi\··· 
·"Jl9.< : 

DOUBLETREE •oe,.:: ,;";~;::,',;o;r 
a1a1Alla><I-Hi>uol<lo.Tl(1)1)&1 
f'!lono:71~!!-3000• Fax:11:MU-U® 

Banquet Check 

Hobby Are11 M11t119ement Oi,frll:I F411Acct: 

Tax Exempt'~ Sales 

BEO#: 

Paga 1 cf2 

46948 

Hobby Area Muiagemirol DJ•~ Town Mt,etjng. Broa.:Sllo Cotittct: Ms. Greld\en lar6011 

"'""" 
4:30 pm 
s:oo pm 
5:00 pm 
S:30 pm 

MocxtvBal!toom 
MoodyBll!o'oom 
IJ.oodV Ballroom 

Oa!IOfl{s) Fn,~ B~ 100% Cola.irnbia11 Regular eo,~ 
Galkm(s) Freshfr Brewed 100¾ Columbian 
01)(:affelnated Colfee 

20 S~of!mpo,t,,dandHerbalttatTeu 
2 Pot(s) HotWalcrfQrHe,t,;,1 Teas 

Modlum ChllHII & Cri!c;l\of Tniy(s) 
Ooum Fmshly Bakad Dol!bleTn,e Chcwlate Chip & 
Wa!nutCoc»:io= 
Doren Oota~!e Fudge Bfownle• 

St.anding PodJum 
Wireless Hal'ldhekl MlcrojlMne 
Tripod O°'pfay Ea.1el 
Hou,aSm=en 

TOTAL FOOD 
SER.VICE CHARGE% 

lCO Package to incllldo: XGA (3000 funwo) LCD 
Projeetor, Projeetlon Cllrtwlth skirt, Screen, 25' VGA Extensbn Cal>I<,, !:xl<!n,lon Cord and Power Ship 

Equi-Tax Inc. 
Suite 200 
1711 I Rolling Creek Drive 
Houston Texas 77090 
281444-4866 

BILL TO 

TOTAL MISCELL.AliEOUS 
SEltVICE CHII.RQE % 

Hanis County Improvement District No. 9 
Hawes Hi!! Calderon LLP 
10103 Fondren Road, Suite 300 
Houston TX 77096 

OESCR!PTION 

Assessment Year 2014 
Public Hearing November !3, 2014 
Mailed Notices: 144 First Class 
Prepare Documents for Exhibit and Attend Hearing 

4S.OO 

-45.00 

"'' 105.()ll 
23.95 

28.95 

"'"' 
e'k ..... 

30.00 
130,00 

15.00 
45.QQ 

400.00 

22.00 

" 

ll0.00 

~5.00 

0.00 
50.00 

105.00 
71.65 

86.85 

448.70 
98.71 

541.41 

oo·· c,.,.: O:I~. 

30.0-0 
130.00 

30.00 
45.00 

800.0D 

1,035.00 
221.10 

1,2:Gl.70 

··:;wn, 

Invoice 
INVOICE# 

21112:015 47704 

"""""' 
243.36 
575.00 

Total 

c,.,up N""'"' tfobby Area Managoment Dinrlet F&BAtt;t; 
PDII~: Hobby Ma l.'lanagcment Oistri,:t T<l'Ml Me!lll/lg • Broai:Skl>Con!ltt: Ms. Ord~ La!ton c;;,toflll~ lilg:r: Maiiel6 Oet R!O 

Room: Moody Ba~room 
Room: Moody 8al/nx,m 
R11om: Moody Ba&rwm 
Room: Moody Ballroom 

Equi-Tax Inc. 
Suite200 
1711 l Rolling Creek Drive 
Houston Texas 77090 
281-4444866 

BILL TO 

Hanis County Improvement District No. 9 
Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
10103 Fondren Road, Suite 300 
Houston TX 77096 

F1mct111n1.SET 
Functlon:REG 
Functlorn RECP 
F1mcllon:MTG 

TOTAL 
Rgo.mrentaJtax% 

Sup~lomHtol In% 

1,500.00 1.500.00 

1,SOll.OO 
5Ji0 90.00 
0,00 0.00 

Orv><!Tol>I: 

a.i,n,Hl<1a; 

~le: 21.2412015 

2/1/2015 

1,Sl!n.110 

3,~0ll.11 

3,4l!0.11 

Invoice 
!NVOICEI! 

47705 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Computer Charges for 1524 items 792.48 Postage, Supplies and Handling 2,575.56 
Return Envelopes 121.92 
Postal Service Fee· Address Correction 8.25 
Annual Reoords Retention Storage 243.89 

Total $3,742,101 



Equi-Tax Inc. 
Suite 200 
17111 Rolling Creek Drive 
Houston Texas 77090 
2&1-444-4866 

Bill TO 

Harris County Improvement District No. 9 
Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
10103 Fondren Road, Suite 300 
Houston TX 77096 

DESCRIPTION 

Roll Management 
Monthly Fee per Contract for A.ss¢ssmcnt Col!cetion 

~ MJGOOs 
V\f PrintS.boP 
a ftll\ place [or qual!lf pr!J1t!11q 

B!llTo, 

Hobby Ana Dlstrkt 
PO Bo,i:22671 
Houston, TX 77227-2167 

P.O.Nvmi,,,, Cus!timer Contatl 

O,..t<:bon Lu,on 
'" 

Invoice 
DATE INVOICE# 

3/l/20!5 47782 

AMOU!-IT 

300.00 
1,958.00 

[ Total .$2,258.00! 

INVOICE for email 
I ,.. I 

2/l9/201S 

lnvo~ 

1S•II034 

caooo tOOOuchar4 color Bu•Inesa C&rdo. Haweo; Whit.brr H.,•eo; AUcndc• 288.00 

$288.00 

Independent Insurance Counselors 
302 S. Gordon 
Alvin TX 77511 
PHONE·. 281•JJ1.J131 
mlke@lnsuraneetexas.net 
www.1nsuranceTllxas.net 

Hobby Area District 
22167 ;'t) bf-',-, 
Houston TX 77227 

·oATEOUE -r- -TRANSACTION INFORMATION 

CLIENT: 105314 

j msuRANCE INV01ci: t: 

WE CAN SERVE 
Af.L YOUR 
INSURANCE NEEDS. 

INVOICE AMOUNT: 
TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 

'" I 

.3~2, 
\~93.~~ 

AMOUNT; ---··-·--' ·=----===-=-=-=-----+=---=-'c-..,.--04/10/2015 j RENEWAL POLICY EFFECTIVE, 04/Hll2015 NPP8251638 393.42 -\ Western Work! GENERAL UAB 04/!0t.!015 THRUQ,1/13/2015 
, 2015 fl,;bbyFes1 

1. INVOICE AMOUNT 

I 
I 

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 

Nathelync A. Kennedy & A$10date; Ci:.ilf:>' R.ejt<mySqv,uoT_, 
.s,,.~ • ..,- 6100 s..oy o,;,.., s.i« 1250 
c,,.,,.r,i"l "°"""'"· To= TIO!ij 
~"'"' 7U/9-!<t5 71~5:!t (fu.l 

Oecomllor 11, 2014 

Mr. Omrid Hawes 
Execi,llveDireOl<ll 
Hc~by Alea Oistrict 
P.O.S0K'22167 
Hou•tcn. TX7TZ!7-21S7 

Rolercnce: BroadwaySlreet Reconstruction: IH..45 to Airport Boulcvan:I 
WBS No. N.000573-0<IOl..:l; Canlraat Numt>or CS18!!0 
Revlslcn Na. 2: LEO Street Ughls and bndscape/ 
Hardscape Enhancem<mts 
NAK Projeet No. 1~08-01 

lnvnlcc, Number 

For ENGINEERING SERVICES rend"fed on the Referenc,i Project. 
In IM pe1iod !rnm O.::tobcr1, 2014\hru Novcrnb(lrJO, 201~. 

Water ~nd S"'1itary Sewer Design 

Tota!Fom 

' 53,918.00 Percen! Comp!ete 95.0% TctalF<!eBi~d 
Loss Pfllvlaus lnvok:eolPayrM11t. 
Cum,ol trwoico Amcunl 

Construction Pba,e Servi~as 

Tclol Fe~ 
Pem,nl Complete 0% Total Fu Billed 
Less Pfllvioos lnvc!ces/Payllll1nts 
Cl/ftent lnvofoe Amount 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THJS INVOICE 

' s1.222.10 

' 32 3S0.80 

' 18,871.30 

' ' ' 
$ 18,871.30 

::-·t 
3if4j::. 



PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, COLLINS & MOTT LLP 
Attorneys at law 
1235 North Loop West, Suite 600 
Houston, Texas 77008 

Blllto' 

Harris County 10 #9 (Hobby Arna Management Dk 
e/o Equl,.Tax, Inc. 

. ,· 
~~of $...,.;c,•,.,.,dorll<I lnlhll 1'<11',octlo<lol<lollnquonttn.:«,•.p,,naW..,andll"l!of<l,t 
J3<Ullry,:001S 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

Bill To 
: H~bby;.;.;· M~;g~~;~1·Dl~i~i-
9:61 o Long Point, Ste. 150 

· Houston, TX 77055 

Description 
Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Occasional K-9 

Patrol Period 02/02/2015 through 02/0fr/2015 

Patrols arc billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week preceding the above invoke date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Hours 

9J 

r---Thank you for allowing us to cam your business. 

$302.!2 

Invoice 

2/9:/20!5 25701 

Rate/ Hour Amount 
27.00 2,511.00 

Sales Ta (8,2 %) so.oo 

! Total I S2,Sll.OO 

ROLAND, FRY & WARREN, L.L.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

2/27120{5 

Hobby Area Management District 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227-2167 

For Professional Services Rendered: 

1525 LakevWe Oriv11, Suite 121 
Kingwood, TX 77339 

(281) 346-9151 
FAX {261) 348-9199 

Bookkeeping services provided during February 2015 for ihc 
month of Janua,:y 2015 600.00 

17.38 

41.40 

One Lone SW Delivery 

Mileage 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
[ 525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

Bill To 
'Hobby Area Management Di;tricl 
: 9610 Long Point, Ste. ISO 
Houston, TX 77055 

Description 
Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Occasional K-9 

Patrol Period 02/161..!0I 5 th.rough 02/22/2015 

Pa!rols arc billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the v,eek preceding tile above invoice date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday indusivc. 

Hours 

!25 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

····-- ···- ... -· ·-·--·· .. .,., __ 
··--·-··-

$658.78 

Invoice 
. - -J~~f~ . J~~Of,c_~"~ 

212J/201S 25830 

Ratel Hour Amount 
27.00 3.375.00 

Sal\!$ Ta)[ {8.2 %) S0.00 

_J Total I S3,375.tl0 



fZl Equi-Tax Inc. 
~ Ad Valorem Tax Assessors I Collectors 

17111 RollingCredDri\.1:, Su1r.a200, ~tOll, 1~ 77090 
P. D. Bo.t 7Jl09, Hotuton, Texas mn 

CuuomcrScrvire281.444.3946 fH 281.440.8304 

HARRIS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 
DATE: 01/30/2015 
TAX YEAR: 2014 

OWNER NAME: FLIGHT SArnTY INC 

ACCOUNT NUMBER, 91/040/239/000/0056 

PAID BY, 

FLIGHT SAFETY INC 
PO BOX 671287 
DALLAS TX 75367-1267 

OVERPAYMENT: $300.00 
DEPOSIT BATCH NO.: 91-133 
RECEIPT NUMBER: 91140308 

CHECK NO,: 627860 

DATE OF PAYMENT: 01/30/2015 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TR 22A & 
TR 9 ASST 324 0 W C HARR!S 
ABST 27 J R HARRIS 

7525 FAUNA ST 

NO'l'ICR OF OVERPAYMENT OP TAX 

DISTRICT NAME 
HARRIS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 

REASON: 

OVERPAYMENT A/>IO!JNT 
$300.00 

*********.***"'*"'**************************************"**********"****••• 

AMOUNT OF CHECK: $4,050.00 CHECK NO: 627860 

AMOUNT APPLIED: $3,750.00 Ref No., FLIGHT SAFETY IN 
DIFFERENCE: $300.00 

COMPLETED BY: 9 DATE: r~w 
Make refund payable to, 

Address: 

City: ____________ .,.cState:=~==~Zip: 
If you need more infonnation, call customer Service at 2"a"1-.,"<"<"."3",."6".--

rzl Eqni-Tax Inc. 
~ Ad Valorem Tax Assessors I Collectors 

www.eqnlll!dne.rom. 17111 Rolllngo«l:.Dri1to Sulte200, fiooston, Teus 77090 
P.O.Bol73109, Hoostoa, Teus 77n3 

Cust0111C>°S«rice281.444.3946 fa:c 281.440.&lOII 

DATE, 01/26/2015 

GULF 1688 LP 
4502 HIGHWAY 6 STE B 
SUGAR LAND TX 7747a-4488 

WRlUS COUNTY IM£> DIST 9 

ACCOUNT NOMBBR: 91/129/876/001/0001 
TAX YEAR: 2013 
REF No., 0886849 

, LEGAL DESCRI!?TION 

RES A. BLK 1 
ctiEARIIOOD PWI.ZA 

9010 CLEAIUIOOD 

DATE PROCESSED: 01/26/2015 
RECEIPT NUMBER: 91131440 
DEPOSIT BATCH No.: RF150126 

NOT.ICE OF CHANGE: IN TAX LLl!.8:U.:ITY 

we have been notified by the .Appraisal Dist:rict of a change in tile appraisal of you:r p:roperty that has resulted in a change in your tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

The explanation of the change is, 

1 ] Decrease in Appraised Value 
[ ] Exemption(s) Added 

[ l Homestead 
[ l Over 65 
( l Disabled Person 
[ J Disabled Veteran 

[ J Account Prorated 
[ l Account Deleted 
!). Rerulitiffi. PeMlt_y ·"'~ o/J. other, muse :,Wt:'r_lp5ZS" 

This action has resulted in a decrease in the amount of tax you owe. Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in tile amount of $104.19. 
Note: Questions reg.irding changes in value should be directed to the Appraisal District, 

If you need more info:rmation, call customer Service at 201.444.3946. 

DATE: 02/02/2015 DEPOSIT BATCH NO.: 91-1Js TAX YEAR: 2014 RECJ:ilPT NUMBER: 91141086 

OWNER NAME: RODRIGUEZ YGNAClO & ELENA A CHECX NO.: 12819568? 

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 91/074/153/002/0006 

PAID BY: 

RODRIGUEZ YGNACIO & ELENA A 
6922 WESTOVER 
HOUSTON TX 77087 

DISTRICT NAME 
KA.RRIS COUNTY !MP DIST 9 

Amount of Refund: 

AMOUNT OF CHECK: 

.AMOUNT APPLIED, 

DIFFERENCE: 

$25.31 

$. 00 

$25.31 

COMPLETED EY: ---><:f,--s!"'~---

DATE OF PAYMENT: 01/31/2015 

LEGAL DESCRH>TION 

LT6BLIC2 
BAYOO OAKS 

$25.31 

NES'l'OV'BR 

OVERPAYMENT AMOUNT 
$25, 31 

CHECK h'O: 128195887 

Ref No.: 

OATS: __ ,7..~-~Z...,c_ __ _ 
******************* .... ***•***+'"***.,***o-*•***•*******.,*******••******.,***** 

FIRST PAYMENT RECEIVED FROM: 

DATE PAID: 12/31/2014 DEPOSIT# 91-122 CHBCK# 3524679801 

• ., ...... ., .................................................... ******************•••••****"'***"' 

DISPOSITION OF OVERPAYMB!IT 

REFUND TO: ___________________ DATE, ______ _ 

Address: ___________________________ _ 

Address, ___________________________ _ 

City: _____________ ,State: ____ ~Zip, ______ _ 

APPLIED TO ACCT# ________________ DATE,. ______ _ 



I 

L 

Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 

P.O. Box 22167 
Houston TX 77227-2167 

Bill To: 

MD-HCID # 9 (Hobby) 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227 

I DATE _-_~+---_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-~---_-_-_-_-_-_-__ -~_--_-_-_-_-_-_D_E=S=C=Rl=P=T=lO:N:-====~---_ 

Professional Consulting & Administration and project management January 
(previously unbilled amount due) and 'February 2015 

I 
I 

I 

Harris County agenda posting fee 

In house copies 4061 @.15 each+ 28 sets@$1.00 each 
In house postage 

Tenns: C.0.D. 

Invoice#: 43014949 

Date: 3/1/2015 

Page: 

Sales Tax: 

Total Amount: 

Amount Applied: 

Balance Due: 

Invoice 

--~ AMOUNT 

$17,840.82 

$9.00 

$637.15 
$0.48 

I 

I 

$O.d 

$18,487.45 

$0.00 

$18,487.45 



Invoices paid after last board meeting 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX77080-7318 

BIii To 
Hobby Area Management District 
9610 Long Point, Ste. 150 I Houston, TX 77055 

I 

Description 

Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Occasional K·9 

Patrol Period Ol/0511015 t!uough 01/11/2.015 

Patrols are billed every Monday for the houm 
patrolled the week pre«ding the above invoice date. 

lrus invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Hours 

80 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business, I 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

1/1212015 25436 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,160.00 

Sales Tax (8,2 %) S0.00 

Total I Sl,160.00 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

Bill To 
Hobby Area Management District 
9610 Long Point, Ste. ISO 
Houston, TX 77055 

DescripUon Hours 
Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 91 
Occasional K-9 

Three Commissioned Officers \\-ith Vehicles and 15 
Occasional K-9. New Year's Holiday 
••Holiday Hours life billed at l.5 Times the regular 
rateU 

Patrol Period 12/29/2014 through O 1/04/20 I 5 

Patrols are billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week preceding the above invoice date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

I 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

BIii To 

Hobby Area Management District 
9610 Long Point, Ste. 150 
Houston, TX 77055 

Description Hours 
Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and IOI 
Occasional K·9 

Patrol Period 01/12/2015 throughOl/18/2.015 

Patrols are billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week pra:cding the above invoice date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

Invoice 
Dale Invoice# 

1/5/20]5 25385 

Rate/ Hour Amount 
27.00 2,457.00 

40.50 607.SO 

Sales Tu (8.2 %) $0.00 

I Total I S3,064.50 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

lll9120!S 25-489 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,727.00 

Szles Tax (8.2 %) S0.00 

I Total I 52,727.00 



I 
I 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

Bi11To 
Hobby Area Managemeot District 
96!0 Long Point, Su:. ISO 
Houston, TX 77055 

Description 

Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Occasional K-9 

Patrol Period 01/19/2015 through 01125/2015 

Patrols are bHled every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week preceding !he above invoice date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Hours 

91 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

! Bil!To 

j Hobby Area Management District 
: 9610 Long Point, Ste. 150 
j Houston, TX 77055 

Description 

Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Oe<:asiooal K·9 

Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
Occasional K-9- Thanksgiving Holiday 
••Holiday Hours arc billed at 1.5 Times the regular 
rate•• 

Patm\ Period 11/24/2014 through 11/30/2014 

Patto!s an: billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week preceding the above invoke date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive. 

Hours 

58 

12 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

I 

I 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

!/26/2015 25557 

Rate/Hour Amount 

27.00 2,619.00 

Salff Tax (B.2 %) S0.00 

Total I $2,619.00 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

12/1/2014 '.!5017 

Rate/ Hour Amount 
27.00 1,566.00 

40.50 486.00 

Sales Tax {8,2. %) $0.00 

Total I $2,052.00 

smc,, .. ,, ... ~ 
Logistics s.,lfuo:1,TXnm 

iHobbyAiea1',lan8liiiineiifO!sbict· 
iJooh Hawn 
!POB~22167 
: HQuilml, TX 77227 

UHer abatement of rl;hi..of-wo.y for Hobby Area 
Management Ol•lrlcl 
January 2015 Uttur Aha1emeot S..n.lces 

,W",-,-,-,.-.,~.-,-,,-,-..,-mp~,c,,c,m",=,=,.---------·-----L-~,-.. -, __ i_ ___ )-sa;-:U~ 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080·7318 

Bill To 
Hobby Area Management District 
9610 Long Point, Ste. ISO 

, Houston, TX 77055 

Description 

Titree Conunissioned Officers with Vehicles and 
O=iona!K-9 

Patrol Period 12/01/2014 through 12/07/2014 

Patmls are billed evei;y Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week preceding the above invoice date. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday inclusive, 

Hours 

120 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 
I 

Invoice 
Dale 

1218/2014 

Rate/ Hour 

27.00 

Salos Tax (8~ %) 

Total I 

Invoice# -j 
25106 

Amount 

3,240.00 

S0.00 

SJ,240.00 



1.3.2. "City" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and 
llSSigns. 

1.3.J. nDistrlct" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors. 
and assigns. 

1.3.4. "Cmmtersignature Dale" means the date shown as the date countersigned on the 
signature page of this Agreement. 

1.3.5. "Director" means the Director of the City's Department of Public \Vories and 
Engineering, or the person he or she designates. 

1.3.6. "/mpro-.ements" are the specific itemsr~ucsted by the District to be incorporated 
into the Project and are further defined in Exhibit A, B1t11Ched hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

1.3.7. ''/nclwle" and "including", and words of similar import, shall be deemed tu be 
followed by the words "without limitation". 

1.3.8. "Party" or "Parties"m= all the entities set out in the Preamble who are bound by 
this Agreement individuaUy or collectively in the context in which it appears. 

l.3.9. "Project" means the construction project to improve Broadway Boulevard from [H. 
45 to Airport Boulevard. 

IL DUTIESOFDISTRICT 

2.1. Rehnburserueot for Jmprovements. The District shall reimburse the City for the costs of 
the Improvements. The construction cost estimate for the Improvements is included in 
Exhibit A. 

2.2. Payment. 

2.2.1. Within 10 calendar days ofthc Countersignature Date, the District shall deliver to the 
City at its address for notices in Article 5, Section $.6.2., a check in the amount of 
~madepayab!etothe~CJtyofHousloll". 

2.2.2. The District shall pny its obligations hereunder from current revenues or out of some 
other fund within the immediate control of the District. 

Additional Funds. ff the City detennines that additional funding is needed for the 
Improvements, the City shall notify the District in writing. The City may make this 
dotermination(s) during, at the completion, ornt the termiruttion of the Project. The City and 
District shall mutually agree to any cost increasc(s) prior to authorizing the action(s) or 

2 



To: "'David Hawes"' <dhawes@hhcllp.com> 
Subject: TAG Registration for Conference Next Week 

David, 

I will be attending a meeting this week regarding TAG and I would like to 
be able to give them the check for Membership/Conference when I see 
them. Also I will be meeting with Gretchen tomorrow. The easiest way 
I think to get the check to me will be to have Gretchen bring it with her 
to our meeting tomorrow. The check should be made out to 
"Transportation Advocacy Group - Houston Region" in the amount of 
$1,600. 

As you know the conference will take place in Austin and I was thinking 
about bringing Eoles along. Give me your thoughts. 

Thanks, 

Danny R. Perkins 
Principal 
ESC Polytech Consultants, Inc. 
William P. Hobby Airport 
8800 Paul B. Koonce, Suite 225 
Houston, Texas 77061-5119 

(713) 645-5155 
(713) 845-6773 Fax 

www.escpolytech.com 

This message contains confidential information and Is Intended only for the Individual named. If 
you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. 
Please notify the sender Immediately by e-mail If you have received this e-mail by mistake and 
delete this e-mail from your system. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be sea.ired or 
error-free as Information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, received late or 
incomplete, or could contain viruses. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any error 
or omission In the contents of this message, which arises as a result of e-mail transmission. If 
verification is required, please request a hard-copy version from the sender. 

3 



Nearly 100 transportation advocates from the Houston region with a shared passion for better mobility 

descended on Austin last Thursday, February 26. All adorned with Green Light Houston stickers and a 

shared passion for better mobility in the Houston region, and making history for the City of Houston, our 

day began at the Texas Transportation Commission meeting where we honored the work of retired 

Houston District Engineer Mike Alford with standing ovations and numerous resolutions. We also had 

an opportunity to thank Chairman Ted Houghton and Commissioner Fred Underwood for 

their dedication to the Commission as they retire from many years of service. 

After a quick legislative briefing by TAG Executive Director Andrea French, Green Light leaders divided 

into seven teams to meet privately with dozens of state leaders and their staff. Chairman Perkins along 

with Assistant Director of Services Eoles B. Whitaker, If were able to split up and speak with their 

respective representatives of the Hobby Area Management District as well, meeting with Senator Sylvia 

R. Garcia (TX-6) and Rep. Garnet Coleman (TX-147). We shared our region's economic impact and 

mobility needs and discussed stances on SBS/ SJRS (Vehicle Sales Tax Allocation). Discussions related 

to other funding options, including local funding proposals, proved fruitful and educational to our 

leaders. State officials were thankful for our passion and impressed by our expansive knowledge of 
funding issues. 

Our successful day ended at the Stephen F. Austin Intercontinental Hotel with the Highlight Houston 

reception. Lighting up the night with our Green Light Houston necklaces, leaders enjoyed remarks from 

Commissioner Jeff Moseley, Senator Robert Nichols {TX-3), Rep. Joe Pickett (TX-79), Rep. Patricia Harless 

(TX-126) and Rep Dennis Paul (TX-129). Freshman class Rep. Gene Wu (TX-137) also joined our special 
celebration. 

Chief Composer: Andrea French 
Editing Composer: Eoles B. Whitaker If 

Commissioner Jeff Moseley and TAG Vice Chair 

Billy Cooke show their Green Light support at 

the Highlight Houston reception! 



DIRECTORS EXPENSE REPORT 

Name: Danny R Perkins District: Hobby Area Management District 

Conference Name: N/A 

Conference Date: Feb 1 -28, 2015 Mileage 

Rate 0.55 Meals Misc. 

Dates Place/Purpose Airfare Lodging Miles Mileage Other Description Totals 
(Hotel) Driven Expense Breakfast Lunch Dinner 

02/23/15 Omni Austin Hotel (Priceline) 364.34 Credit Cd TAG - Green Light Houston 364.34 

2/25/2015 Harris Ctv Toll Road 1.75 Cash Toll Road Fee 1.75 

02/25/15 Perla's Seafood 71.7 Credit Cd Meal for Dannv/Eoles 71.70 

02/26/15 Buc-EE's Gas Station 29.88 Credit Cd Fuel Purchase 29.88 

02/26/15 Shell Gas Station 17.08 Credit Cd Fuel Purchase 17.08 

02/26/15 Cai:ito! Visitors Parkina 8.00 Credit Cd Paid Parkina 8.00 

02/26/15 Denny's Restaurant 26.83 Credit Cd Meal for Danny/Eoles 26.83 

2/26/2015 Mess Hall Cafe 10.02 Credit Cd Meal for Danny/Eoles 10.02 
2/25/2015 National Car Rental 112.91 Credit Cd Rental Car for Austin Trio 112.91 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
Subtotals 364.34 169.62 26.83 10.02 71.7 0 

Miscellaneous Expense 642.51 

Subtotal of Exoenses: 

Number of Davs of Service 28 

Director Fees Due: 

1280 Less FICA/Medicare 

Less Federal Income Tax Withheld 

Less Advance (Credit Card) 1.75 

TOTAL DUE TO DIRECTOR: 1.75 

on District Business. 

Singature ( .. --, -



pr1ce11ne.com· I 
Priceline Trip Number: 130-111-863-81 

I 

I 
Omni Austin Hotel At Southpark ***--1 

I 

HoW!l ctmfom,;t~cr1 
11umbc-r: 

Room !ype: 

Important lnfonnatlon 

I 
Wad, Ffb 25, 2015 -After 03:00 PM 

Thu, Feb 26, 2015-12:00 PM 
i 
i, 

4140 Governors Row, Auslln, TX 

512 .wd.2222 

I 
2room, 
Room 1i, Danny Perkins 
Room 2! Eores \/Vhitaker 

I 
Room 1!40018541427 
Room 2j 40018541426 

I 
P FrJ Parking 
~ Pet 'rr1enc11y 
-& lnd9or Pool 
~ Outdoor Pool 

..g.spa! 
GJ Shuttle 
@ Non[smolting 

**GYf/1 
ia Resiauranl 
b.. Han~icap Accessible 
Ga Busihess Center 

i 
Deluxe Room 1 King Bed 

All roomJ are booked for double occupancy 

!, 

' . . i .. 
:;anc'.oliali0:i policy For the rt.jom type you·ve selected, you can cancel your reservation for a 

full rerund up unm noon on Tuesday, February 24th (IOC31 hole-I lime). If 
you d~e to cancel your reserva!ion anytime between noon on Tuesday, 
February:;24th and noon on 'Wednesday, February 25th (local hotel time), 
the hotel (equires payment for the firs! night's slay. You will be charged for 
lhe first n~hl's stay including taxes and fees. Any remaining amount WiU be 
refunded lo you. Refunds or cancellations are not available aner noon local 
hotel timejon your day of arrival {Wednesday, February 25th). 

The reserk.tfon holder must present a valid pholo ID and credit card at 
cheek-in. pie credit card iS required for any additional hotel specific 
service fC¥S or incidental charges or fees. that may be charged by the hole! 
to the cusjomer al checkout. These charges may be manda1ory {e.g .• 
resort feel) or optional {parking, phone calls or minlbar charges) and are 
not in<:luded in the room rate. 

'· Guarantc,,c policy- ReservaUQll is guaranteed for arrival on the runfirmed check-in date only. 
If you don'\ cheek-in lo the hotel on !he first day of your reservation and 
you don~ alert the hotel in advance, the remainlng portion of your 
roservatio9' wi!! be canceled and you Will nol be entitled to a refund. 

' Fel r;oiicy Dogs aM bats are allowed, A non-refundable cleaning fee of 50.00 will be 
charged pe/' room per stay. The weight of the pet is not to exceed 25 
pounds. sirvice animals are permitted and are exempt from pet policy. 
Pets are allowed on any floor except the 8 

Ra(e d8sc:riphon Websaverf Full pre-payment required upon booking 

I 

I 

Summary of Charges 
Total charged:$364.34 

P\!rt:lmsc: dntc: Feb 23. 2015 
Paymen: melhf"/2: Visa (0782) 
Bi:iing n2rne: Danny Perkins 

Room pr'ica: $159.00 /nlghl 

Numt:er of nigh!-::;: 1 night 

Room ~ubl,:,i;:ii $318.00 

Taxes & fees: $46.34 

Total charged S364.34 
Paid in full 

Pritts :ire in USD 

Need Help? 

t. Give us a call 

Toff free (US & Ganada): 
1-800.£57-9168 

From anywhere else: 
+1212444 0022 

You \Niff need this information 

Priceline lrip number: 
130-111-86'3-81 

Phone number used: 
{713)645-5155 

https://www.priceline.com/dlshboard/?offer-token=57FFDOD7EFB7CA D6110D446'i1"11 

Pagel of 1 



1 1AG 
I BUC-EE. s 

'llj'/8 Hwy 7i East 
Bastrop TH 
I 1s5,32 
I 

Unle:Jde<f 
PUMP jNo. 
GALLqlJS 
PRICB/G 
TOTA~ FUEL 

I 
TOTAL/ SALE 

! 

i2 
i3.904 
$2.149 
$29.88 

$29.88 

Diesel Fuel Contains 
Uf> tb 5;},; Biodiesel 

o,~ Re~ewable Diesel 
State diesel tax 

-. $0. i 9· per- gflllon 
wwwlBUC-EES.COM 

I 

BUC-EE'S 
1700 Hwy 71 East 

Bastrop 'TX 
78602 

979-238-6390 
13.904 G @ $2.149/G 

Pump 12 Original Prepay 
$29.88 
-$40.00 

Sub Total 
Tax 

·$10.12 
$0.00 

Visa 
Card Num 
Terminal 
Approval 

Total -$10. 12 
Visa: -$10. 12 

Change $0. oo 

(S) XXXXXXXXXXXX0782 
800000075508101 

Contains up to 5.0% Biodiesel or 
Renewable diesel - State diesel 

tax $0. 19 per gallon 

ltlltlllJC-EES. COH 
POS: 34 Cashier: Mary, Fue 
2/26/2015 19:00:07 TRAN:13167 

.-AG. 

HARRIS COUNTY 
TOLL ROAD 
AUTHORITY 

SAM HOUSTON SOUTH 

Lane No. 17 

$1 _ 75 

04:1Z:56PM 02-25-15 

Have a nice day! 



flESS HALL CAFE 
U!1S 8RA.ZOS ST 

RUSTIN 'TX 78701 
512-322-9625 

11en::hant 10; 120104666 
Terlli ID: 5434 

Sale 
VISA 
XXXXXXXXXXXX0782 
Entrv Hethod: SeiPed -· .,· 
APPrva(Online .. 
02126115 14:03:45 
lnvD: 00000176 APPr Code: 026377 

Total: 

Herchanl CoPY 
NO SIGHATUR£ REQUIRED 

THANK VOUt 

Z; 

i ~ == •• c... -
~ 

w - w ~~
~ ·- .,C; 
W = C = = -

10.02 

: iELL TAG« 
'lj610 AIRPORT BLVD 

HpUSTON TX 77061 
!j7543440507 
' 

02/26/2015 9:29:40 PM 
Register: 2 Trans#: 7661 Op ID: 2 

Your cashier: rocky 

RJ:GULAR CA PUMP#2 • l 119 GA~@ $ 2.399/GAL $17.08 99· 

Subtotal= $17.08 
Tax= $0.00 

Total= $17.08 

Change Due= $0.00 

Credit $17 .08 
i 
! --------------------------------------' ! )QO(X XXXX ){J{){J{ 0782, VISA 

• ijlVOICE 432039 
• Alffil 026372 
' B,uyer agrees to pay the total, according 
•- ~o the agreement with the card issuer 
' i --------------------------------------

1 

! 
~ave 10cpg instantly at Shell when you 
! eam 100 points at Kroger. 
' i 
Pick up a brochure at your local She 11 
I for more details. 

I 
! . THANK YOU FOR YllllR. BUSINESS !! 

HAVE A NICE DAY ! 

" 

TAG. 

Dine In 

Restaurant #7356 
1601 North IH 35 
Austin, TX 78702 

(512)499-8700 
( ) 

2/26/2015 
Order: 572313 

I Table: . 16 -Guests: 

9:07:18 AM 
Server: Margaret M 
2 

~ 

~ 
ti 

SEAT: 1 
1 Lg Orange Ju 
1 A 11 Amer Slam 

Tax: 

Seat 1 Total: 

SEAT: 2 

2.55 
8.99 
0.95 

12.49 

1 Mild Roast Coffee 2.09 
1 French Toast Breakfast 6.00 
1 Bae strip (1) 1.19 
1 Bae Strip (1) 1.19 

Tax: 0.87 

Seat 2 Total: 11.34 

**************************-******* 
SubTofaJ
Tax 
Gratuity 

22.01 
1.82 
3.00 

Total 26.83 
Visa 26.63 
Acct:XXX)O()(XX0782 

.AuthCode:026173 

Customer . Copy 

"'---- ----------



RA # 928221821 ! RES # 148488761 . 

34Z~ DANNY PERKINS ACCOUNT SIGNATURE FLIGHT EC # 679350475 
' HOUSTON, TX 77047 CREW FT# 

EXT REF# 
RENTAL LOCATION RENTAL DATE RETURN LOCATION RETURN DATE SIGNATURE._FBO_HOU (888)8266890 25-FEB-2015 SIGNATURE._FBO_HOU (888)8266890 27-FEB-2015 8402 NELMS ST RENTAL TIME 8402 NELMS ST RETURN TIME HOUSTON, TX 77061-4150 11:29AM HOUSTON, TX 77061-4150 01:00 PM 

CHARGED DATE 
25-FEB-2015 
CHARGED TIME 
01:00 PM . 

RATE RULES AND QUALIFICATIONS lfffiALX · VEHICLE INFORMATION SIGNATURE CREW RATES RESERVED INTERMEDIATE 2/4 DOOR AUTOMATIC NC I DRIVEN Standard Recreational Auto NC I CHARGED INTERMEDIATE 2/4 DOOR AUTOMATIC NC 
! MAKE FORD 

j MODEL EXPLORER 
COLOR SILVER ! 
ODOMETER 3061 I -. 

. . PLATE FKC7142 ! 
! REG AREA TX - ! 

VEHICLE it FGB74671 
! 
! 

BAY D2 l STALL HB CHARGES 

I UNIT PRICE/UNIT · CURRENT CHARGE 
RENTER'S RESPONSIBILITY 

• TIME & DISTANCE I Day . 40.00X 2 80.00 • UNLIMITED MILES/KM-TIME & DISTANCE M/KM o_oox 0.00 REFUELING SERVICE CHARGE ! 
Gallon 3.25X 0.00 • CONC REC 19 PCT @ 19.00% ! 

15.20 HARRIS SPORTS VENUE TAX 5 PCT @/5.00% 
4.91 • TEXAS REIMBURSEMENT FEE 1.49/DAY Day 2.98 MOTOR VEH RENTAL TAX 10.00% I 
9.82 I 

! 
ESTIMATED CHARGES ! 

112.91 INITIAL X 
ii 

(ALL CHARGES ARE ESTIMATE ONLY ·SUBJECT TO CHANGE IF VEHICLE NOT RETURNEC i 
TO THE LOCATION ON DATE AND TIME SPECIFIED, OR IF FUEL TANK IS NOT FULL AT ! 

I RETURN AND FUEL SERVICE OPTION WAS NOT PURCHASED). PAYMENTS I 
AMERICAN EXPRESS 1009 Auth it I 

I DECLINE OPTIONAL LOSS DAMAGE WflilVER. X 

I 
I DECLINE PERSONAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE (PAI) WITH PERSONAL EFFECTS COVERAGE (PEG). X I 
I DECLINE NATIONAL'$ OPTIONAL ROADi,IDE SERVICE PLUS X 

i ----
I DECLINE OPTIONAL THIRD PAR1Y BOD\LY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE (SU). X 

! 
NOTICE: YOUR RENTAL AGREEMENT OFFERS, FOR AN ADDITIONAL CHARGE, AN OPTIONAL WAIVER TO COVER ALL OR A PART OF YOUR RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF THE VEHICLE. BEFORE DECIDING WHETHER TO PURCHASE THE WAIVER, YO{J, MAY WISH TO DETERMINE WHETHER YOUR OWN AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE OR CREDIT CARD AGREEMENT PR~VIDES YOU COVERAGE FOR RENTAL VEHICLE DAMAGE OR LOSS AND DETERMINE THE AMOUNT OF THE DEDUCT! ,LE UNDER YOUR OWN INSURANCE COVERAGE. THE PURCHASE OF THE WAIVER IS NOT MANDATORY. THE WAIVER IS NOT INSURANCE. 
NOTICE:YOUR PERSONAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE MAY PROVIDE COVERAGE FORYOUR LIABILITY WHILE OPERATING A RENTAL VEHICLE .. THE PURCH,t.SE OF SU IS NOT REQUIRED AS A CONDITION OF RENTING AN AUTOMOBILE. THIS INSURANCE DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY BODILY INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGE ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF A RENTAL VEHICLE BY ANY DRIVEt. WHILE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF DRUGS OR ALCOHOL IN VIOLATION OF THE LAW. THE RENTAL CAR COMPAN S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR ENDORSEES ARE NOT QUALIFIED TO EVALUATE THE ADEQUACY OF THE RENTER'S E1(1STING COVERAGE. 

RA# 928221821 

~a~ PAGE 1 OF2 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

5. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a resolution, application, certificate of formation, and bylaws pertaining to the 
creation of the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CREATION OF HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT 
CORPORATION; APPROVING THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND THE 
BYLAWS THEREOF; CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF THE INITIAL 
DIRECTORS AND CHAIRPERSON; AND CONTAINING FINDINGS AND OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 3859, Special District Local Laws Code, authorizes the District to 

create a public nonprofit corporation under Subchapter D, Transportation Code; 

WHEREAS, Subchapter D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code (the "Act"), 

authorizes the creation and organization of a public non-profit local government corporation to act 

as a duly constituted authority of a local government to aid and assist the local government in the 

performance of one or more governmental functions; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires a local government corporation to be created pursuant to the 

provisions of Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code ("Chapter 394"), and requires the local 

government corporation's articles of incorporation and bylaws to be in the form, and to be 

executed, approved, and filed in the manner prescribed by Chapter 394; and 

WHEREAS, a local government corporation may have and exercise all of the powers 

prescribed by the Act and Article 1396, TEX. REv. Civ. STAT. ANN. (Vernon Supp. 1999) 

( collectively, the "Acts"); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 394 requires as a condition to the creation of a local government 

corporation that at least three residents of the local government who are citizens of the state and at 

least eighteen (18) years of age submit a written application for the incorporation of the local 

government corporation; and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to and filed with the Hobby Area Management 



District (the "District") an application executed by three residents of the District who meet the 

requirements of Chapter 394 requesting the incorporation of the Hobby Area Improvement 

Corporation (the "Corporation") pursuant to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, Board of Directors of the District (the "Board") desires to grant the 

application for incorporation of the Corporation, authorize its Articles of Incorporation, approve 

its Bylaws, appoint the board of directors of the Corporation, and take other action with respect to 

the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE HOBBY 

AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 

Section 1. The Board hereby finds, determines, and declares that the application for 

the incorporation of the Corporation is executed and filed in the manner required by Chapter 394 

and the Board therefore has authority to consider and act on the application for incorporation of 

the Corporation. 

Section 2. The Board hereby fmds, determines, recites and declares that it is wise, 

expedient, necessary, and advisable that the Corporation be formed, the creation and organization 

of the Corporation under the provisions of the Acts and Chapter 394 as a duly constituted 

corporation of the District is hereby approved, and the Corporation is hereby authorized to aid, 

assist, and act on behalf of the District in the performance ofits governmental functions to promote 

the common good and general welfare of the District; and to perform the other purposes described 

in the Articles of Incorporation. 

Section 3. The Board hereby approves the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation 

in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and authorizes the incorporators of the 

Corporation to file such Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas 

in the manner provided by law. 

#4745230.1 



Section 4. The Board hereby approves the Bylaws of the Corporation in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 5. The Board hereby confirms the appointment of the directors listed in the 

Articles of Incorporation attached hereto. 

The Board hereby confirms the appointment of ~---------~ as the 

initial Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Subsequent chairpersons shall be designated as 

provided by the Bylaws. 

Section 6. The Board hereby finds, determines, recites, and declares that it is the 

purpose, intent, and desire of the city in approving the creation of the Corporation and its Article 

of Incorporation and Bylaws, that such actions and the Corporation hereby authorized comply with 

the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations 

and Internal Revenue Service rulings promulgated thereunder and the rulings issued pursuant 

thereto, such that the Corporation shall be deemed to be a constituted authority acting on behalf of 

the District pursuant to the provisions of the Acts of Chapter 394, Local Government Code. 

#4745230.l 



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this the __ day of ______ ~ 

2015. 

Chair 
Hobby Area Management District 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 
Hobby Area Management District 

#4745230.1 



#4745230.1 

Exhibit A 
Articles of Incorporation 



APPLICATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HOBBY AREA 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR CREATION OF HOBBY AREA. 
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION, AND THE APPROVAL OF THE 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS THEREOF 

RECITALS 

Chapter 3815, Special District Local Laws Code, authorizes the District to create a public 
nonprofit corporation under Subchapter D, Transportation Code . 

D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code (the "Act"), authorizes the creation and 
organization of public non-profit local government corporations to act as a duly constituted 
authority of a local government to aid and assist the city in the performance of one or more 
governmental or proprietary functions. 

The Act provides that a local government corporation is to be created and organized 
pursuant to certain of the provisions of Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code (the 
"Code"). The Act further provides that a local government corporation may have and exercise 
the powers prescribed by Article 1396, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes (the "Statutes"). A local 
government corporation's articles of incorporation and bylaws shall be in the form and be 
executed, approved, and filed in the manner prescribed by the Statutes. 

The Statutes requires as a condition to the creation of a local government corporation that 
at least three (3) residents of the district who are citizens of the state and at least eighteen (18) 
years of age submit a written application for the incorporation of the local government 
corporation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned petition and make application to the Board of 
Directors of Hobby Area Management District (the "District") and represent to the District as 
follows: 

I. Pursuant to and in accordance with the Statutes, the undersigned three (3) 
individuals, each of whom is a citizen of the State of Texas, a resident of the District and over 
the age of eighteen (18) years, make application to and request the Board of Directors of the 
District, to approve and authorize the creation of a public non-profit local government 
corporation to be designated and known as the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation (the 
"Corporation"). The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the powers prescribed by the 
Code and the Act. 

II. The undersigned further request the Board of Directors of the District to approve 
the incorporation of the Corporation with Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws in substantially 
the form attached hereto as Exhibits "A" and "B" respectively. 

III. The undersigned further represent that duly executed original counterparts of this 
Application have been presented to and filed with the Secretary of the District in proper and due 
time, form, and manner; that this Application constitutes a proper and sufficient application to 
the Board of Directors of the District for approval and authorization of the creation of a public 

- 1 -
#4745245.1 



non-profit local government corporation as required by the Statutes; and that the Board of Directors of the District may properly consider and act upon this Application. 

-2-
#4745245.l 



WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully request the Board of Directors of the 
District to approve this Application in all respects and to grant the relief herein requested and to 
take such further and additional actions and proceedings as may be deemed necessary and proper 
in connection therewith. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this __ day of ______ , 2015. 

B-3 
#4745245.1 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRlS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally 
appeared--,-------------,~ known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes 
and consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _ day of 
-----·' 2015. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRlS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

Notary Public 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the -----------· foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and 

consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, thls the _ day of 
-------' 2015. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

Notary Public 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on thls day 'personally appeared 
----------, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _ day of 
2015. -----~ 

Notary Public 

B-4 
#4745245.l 



CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

The undersigned natural persons, each of whom is at least eighteen (18) years of 
age or more, a resident of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (dba Brays Oaks 
Management District) (the "District"), and a citizen of the State of Texas, acting as 
incorporators of a corporation under the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 431, 
Texas Transportation Code (the "LGC Act"), Chapter 3859, Texas Special District Local 
Laws Code (the "District Act"), Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code (the "TIIFC 
Act"), and the Texas Business Organization Code (the "TBOC") do hereby adopt the 
following Certificate of Formation for such corporation: 

ARTICLE I 

The name of the corporation is the HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT 
CORPORATION (the "Corporation"). 

ARTICLE II 

The Authority is a public, non-profit corporation. 

ARTICLE III 

The period of duration of the Corporation is perpetual. 

ARTICLE IV 

A. The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, scientific, literary 
and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or within corresponding provisions of 
any subsE,quent federal tax laws. Specifically, the purpose of the Corporation is to aid, 
assist, and act on behalf of the District in the performance of its governmental functions, 
to construct, acquire, operate, maintain and finance parks,. green space, landscaping, 
beautification and recreational improvements to benefit the District; to construct, 
acquire, maintain, operate, maintain and finance public works and improvements; to 
advance the civic, social, commercial, industrial and economic interests of the District 
and to raise, administer and distribute funds necessary for the active promotion and 
benefit of these interests; and to aid, assist and act on behalf of the District in the 

Draft Certificate of Formation Hobby Area Imp Corp 



administration and operation of a tax increment reinvestment zone created by, for, or in 
the area of the District (the "Zone") or in tax increment financing if the District serves as 
a tax increment reinvestment zone or engages in tax increment financing, including: 

(1) the preparation and implementation of a project plan and reinvestment 
zone financing plan of the Zone, and the preparation and implementation of 
amendments thereto; 

(2) the development of a policy to finance development of residential, 
commercial and public properties in the Zone, including development of a policy to 
finance redevelopment of properties and development and redevelopment of parks, 
green space and recreational improvements to benefit the Zone; and 

(3) the development and implementation of a redevelopment policy for the 
Zone including the acquisition of land for redevelopment purposes and parks, green 
space and recreational purposes. 

The Corporation is formed pursuant to the provisions of the LGC Act and the 
District Act as they now or may hereafter be amended, and the THFC Act, which 
authorize the Corporation to assist and act on behalf of the District and to engage in 
activities in the furtherance of the purposes for which the Corporation was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not be authorized to make or acquire home 
mortgages, or to make loans to lending institutions, the proceeds of which are to be 
used to make home mortgages or to make loans on residential developments. 

The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, 
authority, and functions given by the general laws of Texas to non-profit corporations 
including, without limitation, the TBOC. 

The Corporation shall have all other powers of a like or different nature not 
prohibited by law that are available to non-profit corporations in Texas and which are 
necessary or useful to enable the Corporation to perform the purposes for which it is 
created, including the power to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, and otherwise 
exercise its borrowing power to accomplish the purposes for which it was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not issue bonds without the consent of the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

The Corporation is created as a local government corporation pursuant to the 
LGC Act and shall be a governmental unit within the meaning of Subdivision (2), 
Section 101.001, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The operations of the 
Corporation are governmental and not proprietary functions for purposes of the Texas 
Tort Claims Act, Section 101.001 et seq., Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The 

Certificate of Formation 

2 



Corporation shall have the power to acquire land in accordance with the Act as 
amended from time to time. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Corporation shall 
pledge its assets for use in performing its chru:itable functions and shall not carry on any 
other activities not permitted to be carried on (i) by a corporation exempt from income 
tax under Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"), or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws, or (ii) by a 
corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code, 
or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws. 

B. Nothing in this Article shall be construed as authorizing the Corporation 
to transact any business expressly prohibited by any law of the State of Texas, or to 
engage in any activity that cannot lawfully be engaged in by a non-profit corporation 
incorporated under the Texas Code, or to take any action in violation of any of the laws 
referred to in Sections B or C of Article 2.02 of the TBOC. 

Regru·dless of any other provisions of this Certificate of Formation or the laws of 
the State of Texas to the contrary, the Corporation shall not: 

(1) permit any part of the net earnings of the Corporation to inure to the benefit 
of any private individual (except that reasonable compensation may be paid for 
personal services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting one or more of its 
purposes); 

(2) devote more than an insubstantial part of its activities to attempting to 
influence legislation by propaganda or otherwise; 

(3) participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of 
statements), any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office; and 

(4) attempt to influence the outcome of any election for public office or to carry 
on, directly or indirectly, any voter registration drives. 

ARTICLEV 

The Corporation shall have no "members" within the meaning of the TBOC. 

ARTICLE VI 

The street address of the initial registered office of the Corporation, which is 
located within the District, is 9610 Longpoint Road, Suite 150, Houston, Texas 77055, 
and the name of its initial registered agent at such address is David W. Hawes. 

Certificate of Formation 

3 



ARTICLE VII 

A. The number and qualifications of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be fixed from time to time in the manner provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation. The number of directors may be increased or decreased from time to time in the manner provided in the Bylaws, except that no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. 

B. The number of directors constituting the initial board of directors is six (6), and the names and addresses of the persons who are to serve as directors, a majority of whom reside within the District, are: 

POS.NO. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

NAME ADDRESS 

The initial Chairperson shall be _________ .. The Board of Directors 
of the District shall designate each subsequent Chairperson of the Board. 

ARTICLEVIU 

The initial Bylaws of the Corporation shall be approved by the Board of Directors of the District and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The power to alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation is vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation, subject to approval of the Board of Directors of the District. 

ARTICLE IX 

No director of the Corporation shall be personally Hable to the Corporation for monetary damages for any act or omission in the director's capacity as a director, except 

Certificate of Formation 

4 



that the provisions of this Article IX do not eliminate or limit the liability of a director to 
the extent the director is found liable for: 

A. a breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation; 

B. an act or omission not in good faith that constitutes a breach of duty of the 
director to the Corporation or an act or omission that involves intentional misconduct 
or a knowing violation of the law; 

C. a transaction from which a director received an improper benefit, whether 
or not the benefit resulted from an action taken within the scope of the director's office; 

D. an act or omission for which the liability of a director is expressly 
provided by an applicable statute; or 

E. an act related to an unlawful distribution of the assets of the Corporation. 

If the TBOC or the Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Laws Act (collectively, the 
"Acts") are hereafter amended to authorize the further limitation of the liability of 
directors or trustees, then the limitation on personal liability provided in this Article IX 
shall, without the necessity of further action by the Corporation or the Board of 
Directors, be modified to provide such limitation to the fullest extent permitted by the 
amended Acts. No amendment to or repeal of this Article IX shall apply to or have any 
effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director of the Corporation for or with 
respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment or 
repeal. 

ARTICLEX 

The Corporation may provide in the Bylaws for the indemnification of directors, 
officers, employees and agents of the Corporation and other persons, or any of them, to 
the fullest extent provided by law or to such lesser extent as may be provided in such 
Bylaws. 

ARTICLE XI 

In the event of the dissolution of the Corporation, its assets and properties shall 
first be used to pay all existing debts, obligations and liabilities of the Corporation. Any 
remaining assets shall be distributed exclusively to the District, or, if the District no 
longer exists or is no longer an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, 
exclusively to one or more charitable organizations as described in Section 501(c){3) of 
the Code, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal laws, such 
organization or organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors. 

Certificate of Formation 

5 



ARTICLE XII 

The names and street addresses of 'the incorporators, each of whom resides 
within the District, are: 

NAME 

Albert P, Cardenas, Jr, 

Ann Collum 

Darryl Bailey 

ADDRESS 

ARTICLE XIII 

A Resolution approving the form of this Certificate of Formation has been 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on February 12, 2015, 

ARTICLEXN 

The District shall, at all times, have an unrestricted right to receive any income 
earned by the Corporation, exclusive of amounts needed to cover reasonable 
expenditures and reasonable reserves for future activities, 

ARTICLEXV 

The Board of Directors of the District may at any time consider and approve a 
resolution directing the Board of Directors of the Corporation to proceed with the 
dissolution of the Corporation, at which time the Board shall proceed with the 
dissolution of the Corporation in accordance with applicable state law, The failure of 
the Board of Directors of the Corporation to proceed with the dissolution of the 
Corporation in accordance with this Section shall be deemed a cause for the removal 
from office of any or all of the Directors as permitted by the Bylaws, 

If the Board of Directors of the Corporation determines by resolution that the 
purposes for which the Corporation was formed have been substai;i.tially met and all 
bonds issued by and all obligations incurred by the Corporation have been fully paid, 
the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall execute a certificate of dissolution which 
states those facts and declares the Corporation dissolved in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 394,026 of the THFC Act, or with applicable law then in 
existence. In the event of dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, all assets will be 
turned over to the District. 

Certificate of Formation 

6 



ARTICLE XVI 

These Articles may not be changed or amended unless approved by the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

(EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Certificate of Fonnation 

7 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this ____ _ 
day of __________ ~2015. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February, 2015, by ALBERTO P. CARDENAS, JR. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

Certificate of Formation 

8 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February 2015, by ANN COLLUM. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February, 2015, by DARRYL BAILEY. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

Certificate of Formation 

9 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 



#4745230.1 

ExhibitB 
Bylaws 



BYLAWS 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

A Texas Local Govermnent Corporation 

Date of Adoption: _________ _ 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I: FORMATION; POWERS ........................................................................................ I 
ARTICLE II: BOARD OF DIRECTORS ...................................................................................... 2 

Section I. Powers, Number, Appointment, Term of Office, Resignation and Removal.. .... 2 
Section 2. Meetings of Directors ......................................................................................... 2 
Section 3. Annual Meetings ................................................................................................. 3 
Section 4. Regular Meetings ............................................................................................... 3 
Section 5. Special and Emergency Meetings ...................................................................... 3 
Section 6. Quorum ............................................................................................................... 3 
Section 7. Conduct of Business ........................................................................................... 3 
Section 8. Committees ......................................................................................................... 4 
Section 9. Compensation of Directors ................................................................................ 4 
Section I 0. Board of Advisory Directors ............................................................................ 4 
Section I I. Director's Reliance on Consultant Information ............................................... 4 

ARTICLE III: OFFICERS ...................................... : ...................................................................... 5 
Section I. Titles and Term of Office .................................................................................... 5 
Section 2. Chairperson ............................................... , ........................................................ 5 
Section 3. Vice Chairpersons .............................................................................................. 5 
Section 4. President ............................................................................................................. 6 
Section 5. Vice Presidents ................................................................................................... 6 
Section 6. Treasurer ............................................................................................................ 6 
Section 7. Secretary ............................................................................................................. 6 
Section 8. Assistant Secretaries .......................................................................................... 7 
Section 9. Investment Officers ............................................................................................. 7 
Section I 0. Compensation ................................................................................................... 7 
Section I I. Officer's Reliance on Consultant Iriformation ................................................. 7 
Section 12. Delegation ........................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE IV: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ... _ ................................................................... 8 
Section I. Fiscal Year ........ , ................................................................................................ 8 
Section 2. Seal ..................................................................................................................... 8 
Section 3. Notice and Waiver of Notice .............................................................................. 8 
Section 4. Resignations ....................................................................................................... 8 
Section 5. Gender ................................................................................................................ 8 
Section 6. Appropriations and Grants ................................................................................ 8 
Section 7. Contracts ............................................................................................................ 8 
Section 8. Checks, Drafts, Etc ............................................................................................. 9 
Section 9. Depositories ........................................................................................................ 9 
Section 10. Books and Records .............................................................................. , ............. 9 
Section 11. Use of Assets .................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE V: INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................. 9 
Section I. Indemnification .................................................................................................. 9 
Section 2. Limitations on Indemnity ................................................................................ I 0 

Draft Bylaws Hobby Area Imp Corp -i-



Section 3. When Person is· Liable ...................................................................................... 10 
Section 4. Indemnification Coverage ................................................................................ 11 
Section 5. Determination of Right to IndemnihJ .............................................................. 11 
Section 6. Other Determinations ................................................................. , .................... 11 
Section 7. Expenses........................................................................................................... 11 
Section 8. Insurance .......................................................................................................... 11 
Section 9. Modifications ................................................................................................... 12 
Section 10. Non-Exclusive Rights .................................................................................... 12 
Section 11. Limitation on Indemnification ofa Private Corporation ............................... 12 
Section 12. Interpretation ................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE VI: CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY ...................... 12 

Section 1. Policy and Purpose ........................................................................................ 12 
Section 2. Definitions ..................................................................................................... 13 
Section 4. Records of Proceedings ................................................................................. 15 
Section 5. Compensation ................................................................................................ 15 
Section 6. Annual Statements ......................................................................................... 15 
Section 7. Periodic Reviews ........................................................................................... 16 
Section 8. Outside Advisors ............................................................................................ 16 
Section 9. Applicability of State Law .............................................................................. 16 

ARTICLE VII: AMENDMENTS ................................................................................................ 16 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -ii-



BYLAWS 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

ARTICLE I 

FORMATION; POWERS 

The Hobby Area Improvement Corporation (the "Corporation") is formed 
pursuant to the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code 
(the "LGC Act"), as it now or may hereafter be amended, and Chapter 394, Texas Local 
Government Code (the "THFC Act"). 

The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, 
Corporation, and functions given by the general laws of Texas to non-profit 
corporations incorporated under the Act including, without limitation, the Texas 
Business Organization Code (the "TBOC"). 

The Corporation shall have all other powers of a like or different nature not 
prohibited by law which are available to non-profit corporations in Texas and which are 
necessary or useful to enable the Corporation to perform the purposes for which it is 
created, including the power to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, and otherwise 
exercise its borrowing power to accomplish the purposes for which it was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not issue bonds without the consent of the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

The Corporation is created as a local government corporation pursuant to the 
LGC Act and shall be a governmental unit within the meaning of Subdivision (2), 
Section 101.001, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The operations of the 
Corporation are governmental and not proprietary functions for purposes of the Texas 
Tort Oairns Act, Section 101.001 et seq., Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The 
Corporation shall have the power to acquire land in accordance with the Act as 
amended from time to time. 

Draft Bylaws Hobby Area Imp Corp -1-



Section 1. 
Removal. 

ARTICLE II 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Powers, Number, Appointment, Term of .Office, Resignation, and 

(a) All powers of the Corporation shall be vested in the Board of Directors 
(the "Board"). The Board shall initially consist of three (3) persons. Directors of the 
Corporation ("Director" or "Directors") shall be appointed by position to the Board by 
the Board of Directors of the District. The number of Directors may only be increased 
or decreased (but not to a number fewer than three (3)) from time to time by an 
amendment to the Bylaws with the consent and approval of the Board of Directors of 
the District, but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any 
incumbent director. 

(b) Directors shall serve until they resign or until they are removed as 
provided herein. 

(c) Any Director may tender his or her resignation as a Director to the Board 
of Directors of the District at any time. Any such tender of resignation shall be made in 
writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time is so specified, at 
the time of receipt by the Board of Directors of the District. The acceptance of a 
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in 
such resignation. 

(d) Any Director may be removed from office at any time, with or without 
cause, by the Board of Directors of the District. 

Section 2. Meetings of Directors. The Directors may hold their meetings and 
may have an office and keep the books of the Corporation at such place or places as the 
Board may from time to time determine; provided, however, in the absence of any such 
determination, such place shall be the registered office of the Corporation in the State of 
Texas. 

The Board shall meet in accordance with and file notice of each meeting of the 
Board for the same length of time and in the same manner and location as is required of 
the District under Texas law, including Chapter 551, Texas Government Code (the 
"Open Meetings Act"). 

The Corporation, the Board, and any committee of the Board exercising the 
powers of the Board are subject to Chapter 552, Texas Government Code (the "Open 
Records Act"). 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -2-



Section 3. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held at 
the time and at the location designated by the resolution of the Board for the purposes 
of transacting such business as may be brought before the meeting. 

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at 
such times and places as determined by the Board. Any and all business may be 
transacted at any regular meeting to the extent allowed by the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 5. Special and Emergency Meetings. Special and emergency meetings of 
the Board shall be held whenever called by the Chairperson of the Board or the 
Secretary or by a majority of the Directors who are serving duly appointed terms of 
office at the time the meeting is called. Any and all business may be transacted at any 
special or emergency meeting to the extent allowed by the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the Board then appointed and serving (not 
counting a board position vacant for any reason, including death, resignation, or 
disqualification) shall constitute a quorum for the consideration of matters pertaining to 
the purposes of the Corporation. If at any meeting of the Board there is less than a 
quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to 
time. The act of a majority of the Directors present and voting (not counting 
abstentions) at a meeting at which a quorum is in attendance shall constitute the act of 
the Board, unless the act of a greater number is required by law, by the Certificate of 
Formation, or by these Bylaws. 

A Director who is present at a meeting of the Board at which any corporate 
action is taken shall be presumed to have assented to such action unless his dissent or 
abstention shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his 
written dissent or abstention to such action with the person acting as the secretary of 
the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent or abstention 
by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the 
adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent or abstain shall not apply to a 
Director who voted in favor of the action. 

Section 7. Conduct of Business. At the meetings of the Board, matters 
pertaining to the purposes of the Corporation shall be considered in such order as from 
time to time the Board may determine. 

At all meetings of the Board, the Chairperson shall preside, and in the absence of 
the Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson shall preside. In the absence of the Chairperson 
and all Vice Chairpersons, a chairperson shall be chosen by the Board from among the 
Directors present. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation , -3-



The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the 
Board, and in the absence of the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary shall act as secretary. 
In the absence of the Secretary and all Assistant Secretaries, the presiding officer may 
appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting. 

Section 8. Committees. The Board may, by resolution, designate two (2) or 
more Directors or other individuals to constitute a committee. A committee shall act in 
the manner provided in the authorizing resolution. Committees consisting of a majority 
or more of the Directors or authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall keep 
regular minutes of the transactions of its meetings and shall cause such minutes to be 
recorded in books kept for that purpose in the office of the Corporation, and shall report 
the same to the Board from time to time. Committees consisting of a majority or more 
of the Directors or authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall give notice of 
any meeting in the manner required for a meeting of the Board. The majority of 
persons on any committee authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall be 
Directors. 

Section 9. Compensation of Directors. Directors as such shall not receive any 
stated salary or compensation for their service, but by resolution of the Board of 
Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually incurred in connection 
with their service; provided, however, that nothing herein shall preclude any director 
from serving the Corporation in any other capacity or receiving compensation therefor. 

Section 10. Board of Advisory Directors. The Board may establish a Board of 
Advisory Directors composed of members who are, in the judgment of the Board, 
qualified to advise with respect to the activities of the Corporation. Advisory Directors 
may be removed by the Board at any time with or without cause. The number of 
members of the Board of Advisory Directors shall be fixed from time to time by the 
Board. The officers and Directors of the Corporation may consult with the Board of 
Advisory Directors from time to time with respect to the activities of the Corporation, 
but the Board of Advisory Directors shall in no way restrict the powers of the Board nor 
limit its responsibilities or obligations. The Board of Advisory Directors shall have no 
responsibility for the management of the affairs of the Corporation. Advisory Directors 
as such shall not receive any stated salary or compensation for their service, but by 
resolution of the Board of Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually 
incurred in connection with their service; provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity or receiving 
compensation therefor. 

Section 11. Director's Reliance on Consultant Information. A Director shall not be 
liable if while acting in good faith and with ordinary care, he relies on information, 
opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, 
concerning the Corporation or another person that were prepared or presented by: 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -4-



(a) one or more other officers or employees of the Corporation; 

(b) legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the officer 
reasonably believes are within the person's professional or expert competence; or 

(c) a committee of the Board of which the Director is not a member. 

ARTICLE III 

OFFICERS 

Section 1. Titles and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be a 
chairperson of the Board, one or more vice chairpersons of the Board, a president, one 
or more vice presidents, a secretary, one or more assistant secretaries, a treasurer, one or 
more investment officers, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time 
elect or appoint. One person may hold more than one office, except that neither the 
Chairperson of the Board nor the President shall hold the office of Secretary. The term 
of office for each officer (other than the Chairperson) shall commence on the date of 
such officer's election and terminate on the earlier of: the date that the officer is 
replaced by the board; or, if the officer is a member of the Board, the date that the officer 
is no longer a member of the Board. The Chairperson shall serve for the term 
designated by the Board of Directors of the District. 

All officers (other than the Chairperson) shall be subject to removal, with or 
without cause, at any time by a vote of a majority of the whole Board then appointed 
and serving. 

A vacancy in the office of any officer (other than the Chairperson) shall be filled 
by the Board. 

Section 2. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and 
shall preside at all meetings of the Board. The Chairperson shall be designated by the 
Board of Directors of the District. He or she shall have such duties as are assigned by 
the Board. The Chairperson may call special or emergency meetings of the Board. 

Section 3. Vice Chairpersons. A Vice Chairperson shall be a member of the 
Board. A Vice Chairperson shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the 
Chairperson upon the Chairperson's death, absence, disability, or resignation, or upon 
the Chairperson's inability to perform the duties of his or her office. Any action taken 
by a Vice Chairperson in the performance of the duties of the Chairperson shall be 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -5-



conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the Chairperson at the time such 
action was taken. 

Section 4. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of 
the Corporation and, subject to the Board, he or she shall be in general charge of the 
properties and affairs of the Corporation. In furtherance of the purposes of the 
Corporation and subject to the limitations contained in the Certificate of Formation, the 
President, Chairperson, or Vice Chairperson may sign and execute all bonds, notes, 
deeds, conveyances, franchises, assignments, mortgages, notes, contracts and other 
obligations in the name of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Vice Presidents. A Vice President shall have such powers and duties 
as may be assigned to him or her by the Board or the President, including the 
performance of the duties of the President upon the death, absence, disability, or 
resignation of the President, or upon the President's inability to perform the duties of 
his or her office. Any action taken by the Vice President in the performance of the 
duties of the President shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of 
the President at the time such action was taken. 

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all the funds and 
securities of the Corporation which come into his or her hands. When necessary or 
proper, he or she may endorse, on behalf of the Corporation, for collection, checks, 
notes and other obligations and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation 
in such bank or banks or depositories as shall be designated in the manner prescribed 
by the Board; he or she may sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the 
Corporation, either alone or jointly with such other officer as is designated by the 
Board; whenever required by the Board, he or she shall render a statement of his or her 
case account; he or she shall enter or cause to be entered regularly in the books of the 
Corporation to be kept by him or her for that purpose full and accurate accounts of all 
moneys received and paid out on account of the Corporation; he or she shall perform all 
acts incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the Board; and he or 
she shall, if required by the Board, give such bond for the faithful discharge of his or her 
duties in such form as the Board may require. 

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall be a member of the Board and shall 
keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board in books provided for that purpose; he or 
she shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices; in furtherance of the purposes of 
the Corporation and subject to the limitations contained in the Certificate of Formation, 
he or she may sign with the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, or President in the name of 
the Corporation and/ or attest the signatures thereof, all contracts, conveyances, 
franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and other instruments of the 
Corporation; he or she shall have charge of the Corporation's books, records, documents 
and instruments, except the books of account and financial .records and securities of 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -6-



which the Treasurer shall have custody and charge, and such other books and papers as 
the Board may direct, all of which shall at all reasonable times be open to the inspection 
of any Director upon application at the office of the Corporation during business hours; 
and, he or she shall in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary 
subject to the control of the Board. 

Section 8. Assistant Secretaries. An Assistant Secretary shall perform the 
duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary upon the Secretary's death, absence, 
disability, or resignation, or upon the Secretary's inability to perform the duties of his or 
her office. Any action taken by an Assistant Secretary in the performance of the duties 
of the Secretary shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the 
Secretary at the time such action was taken. 

Section 9. Investment Officers. An Investment Officer shall monitor 
compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act and the Texas Public Funds 
Collateral Act, shall require the training and instruction required by such acts, and shall 
prepare, or cause to be prepared, and execute quarterly investment reports and other 
appropriate documentation pursuant to such acts. An Investment Officer is not 
required to be a member of the Board and may be a consultant to the Board. The 
Treasurer may be, but is not required to be, an Investment Officer. 

Section 10. Compensation. The salaries and other compensation of the officers 
of the Corporation, if any, shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors. 
Board members, even in their capacity as officers, are not entitled to compensation 
except as otherwise provided in Article II, Section 9 of these Bylaws. Notwithstanding 
any other provision in these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not permit any part of the 
net earnings of the Corporation to inure to the benefit of any private individual, taking 
into account that reasonable compensation may be paid for personal services rendered 
to or for the Corporation if such services affect one or more of the Corporation's 
purposes. 

Section 11. Officer's Reliance on Consultant Information. In the discharge of a 
duty imposed or power conferred on an officer of the Corporation, the officer may in 
good faith and with ordinary care rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, 
including financial statements and other financial data, concerning the Corporation or 
another person that were prepared or presented by: 

(a) one or more other officers or employees of the Corporation, including 
members of the Board; or 

(b) · legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the officer 
reasonably believes are within the person's professional or expert competence. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -7-



Section 12. Delegation. The Board of Directors may delegate temporarily the 
powers and duties of any officer of the Corporation, in case of such officer's absence or 
for any other reason, to any other officer of the Corporation, and may authorize the 
delegation by any officer of the Corporation of any of such officer's powers and duties 
to any agent or employee of the Corporation, subject to the general supervision of such 
officer. 

Section 1. 
of each year. 

ARTICLE IV 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin January 1 

Section 2. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall be such as from time to time 
may be approved by the Board. 

Section 3. Notice and Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice whatever, other 
than public notice of a meeting given to comply with the Open Meetings Act, is 
required to be given under the provisions of these Bylaws, such notice shall be deemed 
to be sufficient if given by depositing the same in a post office box in a sealed postpaid 

· wrapper addressed to the person entitled thereto at his or her post office address, as it 
appears on the books of the Corporation, and such notice shall be deemed to have been 
given on the day of such mailing. A waiver of notice, signed by the person or persons 
entitled to said notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed 
equivalent thereto. 

Section 4. Resignations. Any officer or Advisory Director may resign at any 
time. Such resignations shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time 
specified therein, or, if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the Chairperson 
or Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, 
unless expressly so provided in the resignation. 

Section 5. Gender. References herein to the masculine gender shall also refer 
to the feminine in all appropriate cases and vice versa. 

Section 6. Appropriations and Grants. The Corporation shall have the power to 
request and accept any appropriation, grant, contribution, donation, or other form of 
aid from the federal government, the State, any political subdivision, or municipality in 
the State, or from any other source. 

Section 7. Contracts. The Chairperson, any Vice Chairperson, the President, or 
any Vice President may execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -8-



Corporation, (i) contracts or other instruments and documents authorized by the Board, 
and (ii) contracts or instruments in the usual and regular course of business, except in 
cases when the execution or delivery thereof shall be expressly delegated or permitted 
by the Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation. The 
Board may authorize any officer or officers, or any agent or agents, of the Corporation 
to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on 
behalf of the Corporation, and such Corporation may be general or confined to specific 
instances. Unless so authorized by the Board or by these Bylaws, no officer, agent or 
employee shall have any power or Corporation to bind the Corporation by any contract 
or engagement, or to pledge its credit or to render it pecuniarily liable for any purpose 
or in any amount. 

Section 8. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the 
payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the 
Corporation shall be signed by such directors, officers, or employees of the Corporation 
as shall from time to time be authorized by the Board or these Bylaws. 

Section 9. Depositories. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from 
time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or other depositories as the 
Board may from time to time designate and upon such terms and conditions as shall be 
fixed by the Board. The Board may from time to time authorize the opening and 
maintaining within any such depository as it may designate of general and special 
accounts and may make such special rules and regulations with respect thereto as it 
may deem expedient. 

Section 10. Books and Records. The Corporation shall keep correct and complete 
books and records of account and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board. 

Section 11. , Use of Assets. Notwithstanding any other provision of these 
Bylaws, the Corporation shall use its assets in performing its charitable functions and 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (i) by a corporation 
exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or corresponding 
provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws, or (ii) by a corporation, contributions to 
which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code, or corresponding provisions 
of any subsequent federal tax laws. 

ARTICLEV 

INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1. Indemnification. The Corporation shall indemnify any person who 
was, is or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Cotporation -9-



because the person is or was a Director or, while a Director of the Corporation, is or was 
serving at the request of the Corporation as an officer of the Corporation or as a 
Director, officer, partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, administrator, agent 
or similar functionary of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise only if it is 
determined in accordance with Section 5 below that the person: 

(a) conducted himself in good faith; 

(b) reasonably believed: 

(i) in the case of conduct in an official capacity as a Director of 
the Corporation, that such Director's conduct was in the Corporation's 
best interests; and 

(ii) in aH other cases, that such Director's conduct was at least 
not opposed to the Corporation's best interests; and 

(c) in the case of any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to 
believe such Director's conduct was unlawful. 

In addition, the Corporation may indemnify any other person who was, is or is 
threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding because the 
person is or was an officer, employee, committee member, Advisory Director, or agent 
of the Corporation to the same extent that it shall indemnify the Directors of the 
Corporation under this Section 1. 

Section 2. Limitations on Indemnity. Except to the extent permitted by 
Section 4 below, no person shall be indemnified under Section 1 above in respect of a 
proceeding: -

(a) in which the person is found liable on the basis that personal 
benefit was improperly received by such person, whether or not the benefit 
resulted from an action taken in the person's official capacity; or 

(b) in which the person is found liable to the Corporation. 

Section 3. When Person is Liable. The termination of a proceeding by 
judgment, order, settlement or conviction or on a plea of nolo contendere or its 
equivalent shall not be of itself determinative that the person did not meet the 
requirements set forth in Section 1 above. A person shall be deemed to have been found 
liable in respect of any claim, issue or matter only after the person shall have been so 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction after exhaustion of all appeals therefrom. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -10-



Section 4. Indemnification Coverage. A person may be indemnified under 
Section 1 above against judgments, penalties (including excise and similar taxes), fines, 
settlements and reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with 
the proceeding; but, if the person is found liable to the Corporation or is found liable on 
the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by the person, the 
indemnification (a) shall be limited to reasonable expenses actually incurred by the 
person in connection with the proceeding and (b) shall not be made in respect of any 
proceeding in which the person shall have been found liable for (i) willful or intentional 
misconduct in the performance of such person's duty to ,the Corporation; (ii) breach of 
the person's duty of loyalty owed to the Corporation; or (iii) an act or omission not 
committed in good faith that constitutes a breach of a duty owed by the person to the 
Corporation. 

Section 5. Detennination of Right to Indemnity. A determination of 
indemnification under Section 1 above shall be made in the manner outlined in Section 
8.103 of the TBOC. 

Section 6. Other Detenninations. Authorization of indemnification and 
determination as to reasonableness of expenses shall be made in the same manner as the 
determination that indemnification is permissible as provided in Section 8.103 of the 
TBOC. 

Section 7. Expenses. Reasonable expenses incurred by a person who was, is 
or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding may be 
paid or reimbursed by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of the 
proceeding and without the determination specified in Section 5 above or the 
authorization or determination specified in Section 6 above, after the Corporation 
receives a written affirmation by the person of his good faith belief that such person has 
met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification under this Article V and a 
written undertaking by or on behalf of the person to repay the amount paid or 
reimbursed if it is ultimately determined that he or she has not met that standard or if it 
is ultimately determined that indemnification of the person against expenses incurred 
by such person in connection with that proceeding is prohibited by Section 4 above. 

Section 8. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance 
on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, Advisory Director, 
committee member, or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the request 
of the Corporation as a Director, officer, Advisory Director, committee member, 
partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, administrator, agent or similar 
functionary of any other foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise against any liability 
asserted against such person and incurred by such person in such a capacity or arising 
out of a status as such a person, whether or not the Corporation would have the power 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -11-



to inderrurify such person against that liability under this Article V or any applicable 
law. 

Section 9. Modifications. The Corporation intends that this Article V provide 
for the inderrurification of Directors, officers, Advisory Directors, committee members, 
employees, and agents of the Corporation and other persons to the fullest extent 
permissible by law. The provisions of this Article V shall be modified to the extent the 
TBOC may be amended in the future, but in the case of such amendment, only to the 
extent such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification 
rights than such TBOC permitted the Corporation to provide prior to such amendment. 

Section 10. Non-Exclusive Rights. The right to indemnification and the 
advancement and payment of expenses conferred in this Article V shall not be exclusive 
of any other right that a person inderrurified pursuant to this Article V may have or 
hereafter acquire under any law (common or statutory), provision of the Certificate of 
Formation or these Bylaws, agreement, vote of disinterested Directors or otherwise. 

Section 11. Limitation on Indemnification of a Private Corporation. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article V, if the Corporation is a private 

Corporation within the meaning of Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws (the "Code"), the right 
to inderrurification conferred in this Article V shall .not include any rights to 
inderrurification that would constitute a violation of Chapter 42 of the Code. 

Section 12. Interpretation. If this Article V or any portion hereof shall be 
invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Corporation 
shall nevertheless inderrurify each Director, and may indemnify any other person 
inderrurified pursuant to this Article V, as to costs, charges, expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement with respect to any 
proceeding to the fullest extent perrilitted by an applicable portion of this ArticleV that 
shall not have been invalidated and to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE VI 

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

Section 1. Policy and Purpose. It is the policy of the Corporation that officers 
and directors of the Board conduct themselves in a manner consistent with sound 
business and ethical practices; that the public interest always be considered in 
conducting corporate business; that the appearance of impropriety be avoided to ensure 
and maintain public confidence in the Corporation; and that the Board establish policies 
to control and manage the affairs of the Corporation fairly, impartially, and without 
discrimination. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -12-



The purpose of this Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy is to protect 
the Corporation's interests when it contemplates entering into a transaction or 
arrangement that might benefit the private interest of_ an officer or director of the 
Corporation or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is 
intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing 
conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable authorities. 

Section 2. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Article VI: 

(a) Interested Person. Any trustee, principal officer, or member of a committee 
with Board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest, as defined 
below, is an Interested Person. 

(b) Financial Interest. A person has a Financial Interest if the person has, 
directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family: 

1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the 
Corporation has a transaction or arrangement; 

2. A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any 
entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction 
or arrangement; or 

3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation 
arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the 
Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement. 

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts 
or favors that are not insubstantial. 

(A Financial Interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article 
VI, Section 3(b), a person who has a Financial Interest may have a conflict 
of interest only if the appropriate Board or committee decides that a 
conflict of interest exists.) 

Section 3. Conflict of Interest Procedures. 

(a) Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of 
interest, an Interested Person must disclose the existence of the Financial Interest and be 
given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of 
committees with Board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or 
arrangement. 

·Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -13-



(b) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the 
Financial Interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the Interested 
Person, he/ she shall leave the Board or committee meeting while the determination of a 
conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining Board or committee 
members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. 

(c) Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest. 

1. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the Board 
or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/ she shall leave the 
meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or 
arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest. 

2. The chairperson of the Board or committee shall, if 
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate 
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement. 

3. After exercising due diligence, the Board or committee shall 
determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity 
that would not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

4. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not 
reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of 
interest, the Board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the 
disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the 
Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and 
reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its 
decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement. 

(d) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy. 

1. If the Board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a 
member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it 
shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the 
member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. 

2. If, after hearing the member's response and after making 
further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the Board or 
committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or 
possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -14-



Section 4. Records of Proceedings. The minutes of the Board and all committees 
with board delegated powers shall contain: 

a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have 
a Financial Interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the 
nature of the Financial Interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of 
interest was present, and the Board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of 
interest in fact existed. 

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes 
relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any 
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes 
taken in connection with the proceedings. 

Section 5. Compensation. 

(a) A voting member of the Board who receives compensation, directly or 
indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters 
pertaining to that member's compensation. 

(b) A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes 
compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the 
Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that 
member's compensation. 

(c) No voting member of the Board or any committee whose jurisdiction 
includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, 
from the Corporation, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing 
information to any committee regarding compensation. 

Section 6. Annual Statements. 

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with Board-delegated 
powers shall annually sign a statement, which affirms such person: 

a. Has received a copy of the Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy; 
b. Has read and understands the Policy; 
c. Has agreed to comply with the Policy; and 
d. Understands the Corporation is charitable and in order to maintain its 

federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities that accomplish one or more 
of its tax-exempt purposes. 

Bylaws-Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -15-



Section 7. Periodic Reviews. To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner 
consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could 
jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic 
reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining. 

b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with 
management authorities conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly 
recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further 
charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in 
an excess benefit transaction. 

Section 8. Outside Advisors. When conducting the periodic reviews as 
provided for in Article VII, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. ff 
outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the Board of its responsibility for 
ensuring periodic reviews are conducted. 

Section 9. Applicability of State Law. Chapters 171 and 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 573 of the Government Code, and Chapter 36 of the Texas 
Penal Code shall apply to the Directors and officers of the Corporation. In the event of 
conflict between any of these State laws and any of the provisions set forth in Article V, 
Sections 2 through 8, above, the stricter provision shall apply. 

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENTS 

A proposal to alter, amend, or repeal these Bylaws shall be made by the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board then appointed and serving at any 
meeting. However, any proposed change or amendment to the Bylaws must be 
approved by the Board of Directors of the District to be effective. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -16-



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

6. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a mobile security camera contract with S.E.A.L. Security. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRis COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



S.E.A.L. Security Solutions, LLC 
Surveillance Monitoring Agreement 

#15942-001 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: SERVICE ~TART DATE: SERVICE END DATE: 

1/27115 
*Revised 2-14-2015 

PROPERTY NAME: Hobby Management District 

PHONE: 713-595-1208 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 9610 Long Point, Ste. 150 
Houston, TX 77227 

1/27115 TBD, 30 DAY NOTICE, MONTH TO 

POINT OF CONTACT: Josh Hawes 
EMAIL: jhawes@hhcllp.com 

MONTH 

POINT OF CONTACT CELL: 713-724-3862 
FAX: 

COUNTY: Harris 

D Video Data Storage Only: Our System will store up to IM I 
2 Weeks of video surveillance, accessible upon your 

Intermittent Monitoring: Scheduled Video monitored during 
Your most high crime hours defined by crime statistics in your 
area. 

D 

Request. 

Analytic Monitoring: Utilizing various image processing 
algorithms we can detect a wide range of occurrences such 

• Breaches into restricted areas 
• Theft - Removal of Items 
o Loitering 
o Crowding or Grouping 
• Vehicles tailgating through secured points 
• And More 

A detection of the occurrences will trigger an alarm to alert 
our 24 Hour Operations Center to view, and address the 
Matter by either dispatching our own officer or contacting 
Other law enforcement officials. 

Record storage of up to 2 weeks of-video surveilla.nce, accessible 
upon request. 

*Minimum ofa cellular network required* 

D 

• Record Storage ofup to 2 weeks of video surveillance, 
accessible upon request. 

• Includes features of Analytic Monitoring 
• SEAL will either dispatch our own officer or contact 

other law enforcement officials in the event there is an 
incident. 

*Either cellular network or a Wireless network with 3mbps 
upload required depending on frequency and duration of 

monitoring* 

24 Hour Live Monitoring and Armed Response: 

• 24 I-lour Live Monitoring from our 24 Hour Dispatch 
Center 

o Record Storage ofup to 2 weeks of video surveillance, 
accessible upon request. 

• Includes features of Analytic Monitoring 
• SEAL will either dispatch our own officer or contact 

other law enforcement officials in the event there is an 
incident 

*Minimum ofa Wireless network with 3mbps upload 
required* 

S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC, TX PSB#Cl5942 
1525 Blalock Road, Houston, TX 77080 Phone: 713-979-2388 I l-866-949-0895 

Fax: 713-583-9365 I l-800,28l-!044 
www.SEALSecurity.com 



2 

"'. ~· ' ··,~ 14~'.": TOTALINITIAL I IiROGRAMliwPE MONTHLY RATE SETUP FEE INITIAL PAYMENT INVESTMENT DETAILS 
Three (3) Mobile Camera 

Intermittent !Honitorine: $3,000.00 /Month Waived Waived Waived Systems 

Plus All Annlicablc Taxes Plus All AnnJicable Taxes 

Additional Terms: For each additional camera on the Intermittent Monitoring Plan a charge of Sl,000.00 +Tax per month will be added. 

Address l: Broadway and W/ Belfort 

Address 2: 8181 Airport 

BILL TO: 

POINT OF CONTACT: 

CORPORA TE NAME: 

Address 3: 6322 Telephone 

Addrc.,;s4: 

rllillifu 
EMAIL: 

CORPORA TE ADDRESS: 

ADDRESS: 

Client understands that rated increases due to changes in federal, state, or taxes may be imposed without notice. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
agrees to maintain a current and comprehensive general liability insurance policy, throughout this agreement, for a minimum amount of $I million 

aggregate. This firm is registered under License # C15942 of the Texas Dept. of Public Safety, Private Security Bureau. Licensing status is 
verifiable online at http://ww,x:.txdps.state.tx.us/pbs/ or by calling l-512-424-7710. 

CLIENT REPRESENTATIVE S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTIONS 

BY: BY: 

PRINTED: 

TITLE: 

--------------
PRINTED: GRANT GOLDIN 

TITLE: PRESIDENT 

S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC, TX PSB#CI5942 
1525 Blalock Road, Houston, TX 77080 Phone: 713-979-2388 / 1-866-949-0895 

Fax: 713-583-9365 / 1-800-281-1044 
www.SEALSecurity.com 



3 

I. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Survei!Iance monitoring service and installation charges vary depending on system configuration, 
equipment and services selected. An amount equal to the first month fee plus applicable taxes will be due prior to the installation of the equipment. 
Offer includes the installation of trailer mounted camera system for a one time installation and configuration fee. An additional fee equal to the price 
of the initial set up will apply for relocation upon the customer's request. Local permit fees may be required. Additional charges may apply in areas 
that require officer response service for municipal alarm verification. Systems shall remain property of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Simulated 
screen images and photos are for illustrative purposes only. 

2. Contingent on selected plan S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC surveillance monitoring services may require access to wireless data 
connection with a minimum of 3 mbps upload. S.E.A.L Security Solutions LLC shall not be liable for overages for your data provider. 

3. Customer is solely responsible for connection to power for camera equipment. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC is not responsible for lost 
transmission or collection of data due to a loss of power. 

4. Site specific instructions will be issued and agreed upon by the Client and S.E.A.L., outlining services requested. 

5. If provided for above, S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will offer an anned response to an alert received in the S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC's control room as specified in the site specific instructions. Client acknowledges and agrees that while S.E.A.L will dispatch an officer upon 
alert and endeavor to arrive at the location as soon as possible thereafter there is no guarantee as to the minimum response time. Officer safety is a 
primary core value of S.E.A.L and the vagrancies of Houston traffic, weather and general conditions may delay arrival. S.E.A.L. will make all 
reasonable efforts to ensure an officer arrives on site within a reasonable time frame after the alert. 

6. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC services, systems and equipment do not cause and cannot eliminate occurrences of the events they are 
intended to detect or avert. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC makes no guaranty or warranty, including any implied warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for a particular purpose. that the services, system or equipment supplied will detect or avert such events or the consequences therefrom. 
Accordingly, S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC does not undertake any risk that customer's person or property, or the person or property of others, 
may be subject to injury or loss if such an event occurs. The allocation of such risk remains with customer, not S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. 

7. Insurance, if any, covering such risk shall be obtained by customer. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC shall have no liability for loss, 
damage or injury due directly or indirectly to events, or the consequences therefrom, which the system or services are intended to detect or avert. 
Customer shall look exclusively to its insurer and not to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC to pay customer in the event of any such loss> damage or 
injury. Customer releases and waives for itself and its insurer all subrogation and other rights to recover from S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
arising as a result of paying any claim for loss, damage or injury of customer or another person. 

8. The provisions of this section shall apply no matter how the loss, damage or injury or other consequence occurs, even if due to S.E.A.L. 
Security Solutions LLC. 's perfonnance or nonperformance of its obligations under this agreement or from negligence, active or otherwise. strict 
liability, violation of any applicable consumer protection law or any other alleged fault on the part of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC., its agents or 
employees. If any other person. including customer's subrogating insurer, makes any claim or files any lawsuit against S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC. in any way relating to the services, system or equipment that are the subjects of this agreement, then customer shall indemnify and hold 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC harmless from any and all such claims and lawsuits including the payment of all damages, expenses, costs and 
attorneys' fees. No suit or action shall be brought against S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. or its agents, employees, subsidiaries, affiliates or parents 
(both direct and indirect) more than one year after the incident that resulted in the loss, injury or damage occurre~ or the shortest duration permitted 
under applicable law if such period is greater than one year. The provisions of this section sha11 apply to and benefit S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC and its agents, employees, contractors, subsidiaries, affiliates, parents (both direct and indirect) and affinity marketers. if this agreement 
provides for a direct connection to a municipal police or fire department or other organization, then that department or other organization may also 
invoke the provisions of this section e against any claims due to any failure of such department or organization. 

9. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC assumes no liability for delays in installation of the equipment or for the consequences therefrom, 
however caused, or for interruptions of service or for the consequences therefrom due to strikes, riots, floods, acts of god or any causes beyond the 
control of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. And will not be required to supply service to the customer while interruption of service due to any such 
cause shall continue. 

10. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. 's receipt of alarm signals, electronic data, voice data or images from the equipment or system installed in 
customer's premises is dependent upon proper transmission of such alarm signals. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC cannot receive alann signals 
when the customer's teleco service or other transmission mode is not operating or has been cut, interfered with, or is otherwise damaged, or if the 
alarm system is unable to acquire, transmit or maintain an alarm signal over customer's teleco service or transmission mode for any reason including 
but not limited to network outage or other network problems such as congestion or downtime, routing problems, or instability of signal quality. 
customer understands that signal transmission failure may occur over certain types ofteleco services such as some types of dsl, ads!, voip. digital 
phone, internet protocol based phone or other internet interface-type service or radio service, including cellular, wireless or private radio, or 
customer's proprietary telecommunication network, intranet or ip-pbx. or other third-party equipment or voice/data transmission networks or systems 
owned, maintained or serviced by customer or third parties, if: (l) there is a loss of normal electric power to the monitored premises occurs (the 
battery back-up for S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC.'s alarm panel does not power customer's communication facilities or teleco service); or (2) 
electronic components such as modems malfunction or fail. 

S.E.AL. SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC, TX PSB#Cl5942 
1525 Blalock Road, Houston, TX 77080 Phone: 713-979-2388 / HI66-949-0895 

Fax: 713-583-9365 / l-800-28!-1044 
www.SEALSecurity.com 



4 

Customer understands that S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will only review the initial compatibility of the alarm system with customer's teleco 
service at the time of initial installation of the alann system and that changes in the teleco service's data fonnat after S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC. 's initial review of compatibility could make the teleco service unable to transmit alarm signals to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. If S.E.A.L. 
Security Solutions LLC determines in its sole discretion that customer's teleco service is compatible, S.E.AL. Security Solutions LLC will permit 
customer to use its teleco service as the primary method of transmitting alarm signals, although customer understands that S.E.AL. Security 
Solutions LLC. Recommends that customer also use an additional back-up method of communication to connect customer's alarm system to 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Regardless of the type of teleco service used, customer also understands that if S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
detennines in its sole discretion that customer's teleco service is, or later becomes, non-compatible, or if customer changes to another teleco service 
that is not compatible, then S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will require that customer use an alternate method of communication acceptable to 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC as the primary method to connect Customer's alarm system to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer also 
understands that if customer's alarm system has a line cut feature, it may not be able to detect alarm signals if the teleco service is interrupted, and 
that S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC may not be able to download system changes remotely or provide certain auxiliary monitoring services through 
a non-approved teleco service. Customer acknowledges that any decision to use a non-approved teleco service as the method for transmitting alarm 
signals is based on customer's own independent business judgment and that any such decision is made without any assistance, involvement, input. 
recommendation, or endorsement on the part of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer assumes sole and complete responsibility for 
eslablishing and maintaining access to and use of the non-approved teleco service for connection to the alann monitoring equipment. Customer 
further understands that the alann system may be unable to seize the teleco service to transmit an alarm signal if another connection has disabled, is 
interfering with, or blocking the connection. 

11. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the customer and S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. In executing this agreement, 
customer is not relying on any advice or advertisement of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer agrees that any representation, promise, 
condition, inducement or warranty, express or implied, not included in writing in this agreement shall not be binding upon any party, and that the 
tenns and conditions hereof apply as printed without alteration or qualification, except as specifically modified in writing. The terms and conditions 
of this agreement shall govern notwithstanding any inconsistent or additional terms and conditions or any purchase order or other document 
submitted by the customer. 

12. Client and client's agent represents that client is financially solvent. Client and client's agent shall be unconditional guarantors for payment 
for all amounts invoiced by S.E.A.L. hereunder. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, S.E.A.L. may terminate this agreement at any time, 
after 48 hours written notice to the client: due to the clients failure to pay any monies due hereunder, or if at any time during this agreement there 
shall be filed by or against client in any court, pursuant to any statute, a petition of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or the appointment of a 
receiver all or a portion of the client's property. 

13. S.E.A.L. billing is on a monthly cycle in advance for monitoring and response services to be perfonned the following month. Services are 
billed on the first of the month with invoices payable, Net 30 or within 30 days of invoice. Any dispute or claim regarding the amount of an invoice 
must be forwarded in writing by the Client to S.E.A.L. within 5 days from the invoice date, setting forth the nature and details of the dispute, 
including all supporting documentation, or it shall for all purposes be deemed agreeable by the Client. Client agrees to pay a late fee of 0.04 times the 
total invoice plus all collection and attorney fees and costs which may be incurred by S.E.A.L. in the collection of any invoice not paid pursuant to 
the terms of this paragraph. Client shall not be entitled to retain any monies due or owing to S.E.A.L. hereunder as security for the payment of any 
and all claims. 

14. Any and all property, equipment. supplies, and/or materials furnished by S.E.A.L. placed at or on a site shall remain the property ofS.E.A.L. 
Throughout the term of this agreeµient, S.E.A.L. maintains the sole and exclusive rights to install, maintain, replace, and remove such property at any 
time. In the event of termination or nonpayment ofup to 60 days S.E.A.L. reserves the right the remove said equipment from the customer's property 
without notice. 

15. This agreement shall be in full force and effect, after the start of services, for a period of one year, after which period the Client or S.E.A.L. 
may terminate this agreement by giving 30 days prior written notice by certified mail to the other party involved. Client shall remain liable for all 
amounts due hereunder through the periods stated above, 

16. This agreement supersedes any and all prior and other agreements of its kind, oral and written, between S.E.A.L. and the Client, and represents 
the entire agreement between the parties. No other agreement or representations, oral or written, have been made by S.E.A.L. Any alteration, 
modification, or amendment of this agreement must be in writing containing the signature of an authorized representative of each party. 

I 7. It is agreed by and between the Client and S.E.A.L. that if any te1111s or provision of this agreement shall be detennined invalid or illegal, all 
the remaining items and provision shall remain in full force and effect, and enforceable by the Jaws of the State of Texas. 

18. If signing as agent, I hereby represent that I have full legal authority to sign contracts and enter into commitments on behalf of the above 
owner. 

S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC, TX PSB#CI5942 
1525 Blalock Road, Houston, TX 77080 Phone: 713-979-2388 I 1-866-949-0895 

Fax: 713-583-9365 I 1-800-281-!044 
www.SEALSecurity.com 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

7. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a contract with Harris County regarding the provision of County Nuisance 
Abatement Services. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



DISTRICT MEMORANDUM 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: JOSH HA WES 

SUBJECT: COUNTY NUISANCE ABATEMENT SERVICES 

DATE: MARCH 5, 2015 

This matter was first brought before the public safety committee in October of 

2014 and was approved by the committee. The purpose of the contract with Harris 

County for nuisance abatement is to provide funding along with seven other management 

districts for County Attorneys whose sole purpose is to provide nuisance abatement in the 

Districts. 

The purpose of nuisance abatement is to end chronic criminal activity in the 

District in locations such as after hour clubs, illegal game rooms, massage parlors and 

apartments. 

The methods used in the nuisance abatement range from meetings, official letters 

or civil lawsuits against the property owner of the nuisance in question. In other districts 

this program has been used to stop drug dealing on properties, the closing of numerous 

after hour clubs and severing gang control of a condominium complex. 



INTERLOCAL CONTRACT 
(The County Attorney Commuo.ity Protection. Program) 

-·--- -----.. ------
l. PARTIES 

1.1 Parties. The Parties to this Interlocal Contract are Harris County (HARRIS COUNTY), on beba]f of Office 
of Harris County Att;omey (THE COUNTY ATTORNEY), and Greater Sbarpstown Management 
District, Hobby Area Management District of Harris County, Harris County Improvement District 
Number S (Brays Oaks) and Spring Branch Management District of Harris Cou.oty (THE 
DISTRICTS), special districts created as governmental agencies and political subdivisions of this state 
under Section 59, Article XVI, of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 4110 of Special District Local Laws 
Code. This Interlocal Contract is entered into pursuant to Chapter 791 Interlocal Cooperation Contracts Act 
of the Texas Government Code in order to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of local government. 

2. PURPOSE 

2.1 Description. Management districts promote economic development and public welfare within their 
boundaries and are charged with promoting the health, safety, and general welfare of residents. Management 
districts have areas in which certain property owners or others tolerate, allow or conduct illegal activities that 
impact the health, safety, and general welfare of the property owners in the districts. The Office of the 
Harris County Attorney is actively involved in community protection activities in Harris County and 
employs attorneys, paralegals, and other staff whose primary duties are devoted to these matters. The Office 
has developed expertise in utilizing its pow~r of civil enforcement to persuade and compel property owners 
to obey county regulations and state law and thereby enhance the economic development of property in 
management districts. To enable the Harris County Attorney to devote more resources to community 
protection activities, pursuant to Local Gov. Code 375.281 & 092(i), THE DISTRICTS and HARRIS 
COUNTY are entering into a contract for increased civil enforcement within the geographical boundaries of 
THE DISTRICTS. The County Attorney will also coordinate and facilitate interaction and efforts with 
appropriate law enforcement agencies, to include the Harris County District Attorney, the Harris County 
Sheriff, Harris County Constables, municipal law enforcement agencies, state and federal agencies, and 
other resources as appropriate and required. 

3. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPRESENTATIONS 

3.1 Applicable Expertise. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY and the person executing this Agreement on. behalf of 
THE COUNTY ATTORNEY certify and represent that THE COUNTY ATTORNEY (including THE 
COUNTY ATTORNEY's agents, employees, volunteers, and subcontractors as applicable) possess(es) the 
skills, qualifications, expertise, experience, education, knowledge, ability, and financial resources to perform 
all services and/or deliverables contemplated in this Agreement with no disruption of service delivery. 

4.1 

4. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Specific Work. Products, Services, Licenses and/or Deliverables. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY shall 
furnish the work, products, services, licenses and/or deliverables as outlined in Attachment A, which is 
attached and incorporated in this Agreement. 

5. REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 Independent Contractor. THE DISTRICTS expect THE COUNTY ATTORNEY to meet the high. standards 
set forth in this Agreement and look to THE COUNTY ATTORNEY for results only. Unless otherwise 
required by law or regulation, THE DISTRICT shall not direct the methods used to obtain those results and 
THE COUNTY ATTORNEY shall perform the services as an independent contractor under the sole 
supervision, management, direction, and control of THE COUNTY ATTORNEY. As an independent 

3 



contractor, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will 11ccept directions pertaining to the goals to be attained and the 
results to be achieved, as applicable pursuant to this Agreement, but THE COUNTY A TIORNEY sh.all he 
solely responsible for the manner in which THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will perform the services under 
this Agreement. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY is not obligated to maintain any set, regular h.ours nor to 
perform any set number of hours of service in fulfilling the obligations under this Agree1nent. This 
Agreement is not intended to create a joint enterprise,joint venture, business partnership, agency, franchise, 
or employment relationship under Texas law. The persom1e) and staff of THE COUNTY ATTORNEY are 
independent contractors or employees of HARRJS COUNTY and are not for any purposes considered 
employees or agents of THE DISTRICTS. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY assumes full responsibility for the 
actions of any employees and agents while performing any services incident to this Agreement, and THE 
COUNTY ATTORNEY shall remain solely responsible for the supervision, daily direction and control, 
payment, if any, of salaries (including withholding of income and social security taxes), workers' 
compensation or disability benefits and like requirements and obligations. 

5 .2 Employee Retention. 

5.2.1 THE COUNTY ATTORNEY agrees to maintain the organizational and administrative capacity and 
capabilities to carry out all duties and responsibilities under this Agreement. The personnel THE COUNTY 
ATTORNEY assigns to perform the duties and responsibilities under this Agreement will be properly trained 
and qualified for the functions they are to perform. If specific qualifications are set forth in job descriptions 
required by the funding entity and/or in this Agreement, only persoID1el with the required qualifications will 
be assigned by THE COUNTY ATTORNEY to fill functions unless a written waiver is granted. 

5.2.2 The County Attorney will assign at least one attorney with no less than seven years experience 
substantially all of whose duties will be those described in the Scope of Services; in addition, THE 
COUNTY ATTORNEY will assign one legal assistant, approximately one-half of whose duties will be 
those described in the Scope of Services. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will provide THE DISTRICTS 
with the name and contact information of such attorney, who shall be available on a regular basis for 
conferences with the THE DISTRICTS. 

5.3 No Subcontracts. Unless otherwise explicitly set out in this Agreement, HARRIS COUNTY shall not enter 
into any subcontract for the work, products, services and/or deliverables under this Agreement without prior 
written approval from THE DISTRICTS. To obtain written approval, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY must 
submit a written request for approval that includes the qualifications of the subcontractor to perform and 
meet the standards of this Agreement. · · 

5.4 Applicable Laws. Each Party shall comply (and assure compliance) with all applicable state, federal, and 
local laws, ordinances, regulations, executive orders, rules, directives, standards, guidelines, and instructions 
relating to the work to be performed. If laws or regulations change, and affect any provision of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to conform to those changes in the laws or regulations 
on the date such laws or regulations become effective. 

5.5 No Conflicts. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will not represent THE DISTRICTs' interests in any matter the 
COUNTY ATTORNEY determines to be adverse to HARRIS COUNTY or the State of Texas. 

5.6 Case Priorities. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will be guided by the enforcement priorities communicated 
from THE DISTRICTS. THE DISTRICTS will designate one or more individuals to communicate with the 
assigned COUNTY ATTORNEY persoID1el and to coordinate the activities of such personnel and THE 
DISTRICTS. The designees of THE DISTRICTS will endeavor to provide substantially equal coverage of 
each of the individual districts with regard to services provided under this Agreement. 

5.7 Nondisclosure and Confidentiality of Information. To the extent permitted by law, THE COUNTY 
ATTORNEY must keep confidential the contents of all discussions with local, state, and federal officials, as 
well as the contents of all local, state, and federal records and all other information obtained during 
performance under this Agreement. To fulfill THE COUNTY ATTORNEY's obligations under this 

4 



Agreement, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY may be provided access to information, systems, QJJerations, or procedures that are securiJ:y sensitive or have been identified as confidential. This confidentiai information may include information from one of the government entity funding sources, such as a TeiH.S or federal agency. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY and the person executing this Agreement on bebµlf of THE COUNTY ATTORNEY acknowledge that (a) access to this information (whether electronic, written or oral, formal or informal) is provided solely to THE COUNTY ATTORNEY for the purpose of discharging the duties in this Agreement, (b) premature or unauthorized disclosure of this information can irreparably harm the interests of THE DISTRICT and may constitute a violation of state and/or federal law, and (c) the information may represent confidential or proprietary information, the release of which. may b~ ,estricted or prohibited by law. Therefore, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY must (1) not access any information without express written authorization of THE DISTRICTS; (2) not copy, recreate, or use any information or document obtained in connection with this Agreement other than for the performance of this Agreement; (3) to the extent permitted by law, keep confidential the contents of all discussions with county, state, and federal officials, as well as the contents of all county, state, and federal records and all othec information obtained during performance under this Agreement, unless authorized in writing by approp1iate District officials; (4) except to the extent required by law, necessary for the performance of this Agreement, or necessary for Medicaid or other insurance billing, not release, disclose, reveal, communicat\\ impart or divulge any information or any summary or synopsis of the information in any manner or any form whatsoever (including any information relating to a client or the client's family who has been provided services pursuant to this Agreement) to outside parties without the express written consent of THE DISTRICTS; (5) take all steps necessary to protect confidential information from disclosure to third parties and have a system in effect that must include a method to ensure the confidentiality of records and other information relating to clients according to applicable federal and state law, rules and regulations; ( 6) not reproduce, copy, or disseminate such confidential information except to those who need to know such information and are obligated to maintain its confidentiality, including THE COUNTY AITORNEY's partners, principals, representatives or employees as necessary to fulfill obligations under this Agreement; (7) notify THE DISTRICTS immediately of all requests for confidential information; and (8) immediately report to THE DISTRICTS all unauthorized disclosures or uses of confidential information. 

6. AMOUNT AND BASIS FOR PAYMENT 

6.1 Specific Amount of and Basis for Payment. For and in consideration of the work, products, services and/or deliverables provided under this Agreement and during the term of this Agreement, subject to the limitations in this Agreement, THE DISTRICTS agree to pay HARRIS COUNTY the annual sum of $193,000.00 per· year, which includes the cost of personnel arid their benefits and $10,000 in litigation costs. If litigation costs exceed the $10,000, the County Attorney may invoice the Districts to reimburse Harris County for actual and reasonable litigation expenses. 

6.2 THE DISTRICTS agree that they will each fund their equal share of the paymen!s to THE COUNTY ATTORNEY under this Agreement, and will provide such funds to Harris County Improvement District No. 5 at least five days prior to the due date. Harris County Improvement District No. 5 agrees to make such payments timely to THE COUNTY ATTORNEY on behalf of itself and the other DISTRICTS. 

7. TERM OF THE AGJREEMENT 

7.1 Time Period. The time period for performance (term) of this Agreement shall start March 1, 2015 and end February 28, 2016. Any work, products, services, licenses and/or deliverables provided outside the term of this Agreement shall not be considered to be under this Agreement. 

7.2 Renewal. THE DISTRICTS have the option to extend the term of this Agreement for three (3) additional year(s), renewable for one year at a time by extending the termination date one year from the prior term's end date upon the same terms and conditions and pricing as are provided for in this Agreement for the original term. Without affecting the agreed unit pricing, THE DISTRICTS may decrease or increase the total. maximum funds from the current year that are certified as available to pay the obligations nnder the 
5 



Agreement. THE DISTRICTS may exercise this option by giving written notice to TBB COUNTY 
ATTORNEY of THE DISTRICTS' intent to extend the term for one year, such notice to be given at least 
60 days prior to the expiration date of the currently effective agreement. The renewal shall not become 
effective until THE D{STRICTS has funded any financial obligation for the renewal, as evidenced in 
writing, such as a certification of funds contained on a purchase order. 

8. TERMINATION PROVISIONS 

8.1 THE DISTRICTS or THE COUNTY ATTORNEY, upon 60 days notice to the other party, may terminate 
this contract for any reason. 

8.2 Return of Documents after Termination. If permitted by law and any established ethical requirements 
applicable to specific professionals, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY shall deliver to THE DISTRICTS 
copies of all completed or paitially completed data, information, and documents prepared under this 
Agreement on behalf of THE DISTRICTS. Within IO business days after the effective date of 
termination, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY shall return to THE DISTRICTS all records, files, documents, 
notes and other items in THE COUNTY ATTORNEY' s possession, if any, relating to any assignments or 
work that THE COUNTY ATTORNEY has undertaken or been given under this Agreementifpermitted 
by Jaw and any established ethical requirements applicable to specific professionals. However, nothing 
in this section is intended to require THE COUNTY ATTORNEY to surrender Tiffi COUNTY ATTORNEY's own records to THE DISTRICTS after termination. 

9. IMMUNITY 

9.1 No Waiver of Governmental Immunity. Neither Party waives any immunity or defense on behalf of 
itself, its employees or agents as a result of the execution of this Agreement. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS 

IO. I Notices to THE DISTRICTS. Any notice (or billing invoice) required or permitted to be given by 
HARRIS COUNTY or THE COUNTY ATTORNEY to THE DISTRICTS may be given by hand 
delivery, facsimile, or certified United States Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed 
to: 

Attention: David Hawes and Bill Calderon 
P0Box22167 

10103 FONDREN RD (77096-4556) 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77227-2167 

Fax: 713.595.1890 

10.2 Notices to HARRIS COUNTY. Any notice required or permitted to be given by THE DISTRICTS to 
HARRIS COUNTY may be given by hand delivery, facsimile, or certified United States Mail, postage or 
fee prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to: 

First Assistant County Attorney 
Office of Harris County Attorney 

1019CONGRESS STFL 15 
Houston, TX 77002-1799 

Fax: 713-755-1553 

6 



WITH A COPY OF THE NOTICE TO: 
The Harris County Auditor 

I 00 I Preston St Ste 800 
Houston, TX 77002 

auditor@co.harris.tx.us 

I 0.3 Receipt of Notice. Such notice shall be considered given and complete upon successfu.l electronic 
transmission or upon deposit in the United States Mail. 

I 0.4 Change of Address. Either party may change its address for notice by giving the other party 30 days prior 
written Notice specifying the new address. 

10.5 Electronic or Facsimile Signatures and Duplicate Originals. Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Uniform 
Electronic Transactions Act in Chapter 322 of the Texas Business and Commerce Code and1he Federal 
Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act (beginning at 15 U.S.C. Section 7001), the 
Parties have agreed that the transactions under this Agreement may be conducted by electr.onic means. 
Pursuant to these statutes, tl!!is Agreement may not be de11i.ed legal effect or enfun:eability sol.ely 
because it is in electironic form 01r because it con.tains an. el.<¾:tronic signature. This Agreement may 
be executed in duplicate counterparts and with electronic or facsimile signatures with the same effect as if 
the signatures were on the same document. Each multiple original of this document shall be deemed an 
original, but all multiple copies together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

I 0.6 Signatory Authorized to Execute Agreement. The person executing this Agreement on behalf of each 
Party represents that he or she is duly authorized by the policy of the party's governing body to execute 
this Agreement on behalf of the party. 

7 



By: _____________ _ 
Ed Emmett (date) 
County Judge 

APPROVED BY: 

Robert Soard (date) 
First Assistant County Attorney 
Office of Harris County Attorney 

ThisAgreementshaU be of no force or effect until approved in writing by the 
First Assistant County Attorney. 

8 

GREA 'fER SHARPSTOWN MANAGEMENT J)ISTRlC'f OF 
HARRIS COUNTY 

By: ______________ _ 
Chainnan Date: ____________ _ 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY: 

Secretary 
Date: --------------

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT OFHAIRRIS COUNTY 

By: ______________ _ 
Chairman 

Date: ____________ _ 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY: 

Secretary 
Date: --------------

BARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
NUMBER 5 (BRAYS OAKS) . 

By: ______________ _ 
Chairman 

Date: ____________ _ 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY: 

Secretary 
Date: _____________ _ 



9 

§PRING BRANCl:J MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT OF HARRI§ COUNTY 

By:. ____________ _ 
Chairman 

Date: _______ ~-----

ACKNOWLEDGED BY: 

Secretary 
Date:. ____________ _ 



Attachment A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

HARRIS COUJ\!TY agrees to authorize THE COUNTY ATTORNEY to hire and assign personnel to ded(qate to THE 
DISTRICTS the equivalent of the full workload of one Assistant County Attorney and one-half of a paralegal, as well as 
other supporting staff, to provide the services below to THE DISTRICTS. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY may assign any 
number of individuals to provide the services contracted hereby, and may assign such individuals to other tasks when they are 
not fulfilling THE COUNTY ATTORNEY'S obligations hereunder. Upon request, THE COUNTY ATTORNEY shall 
provide THE DISTRICTS with documentation that the equivalent of one attorney and one-balf paralegal is being provided as 
required above. Services and activities to be provided include: 

• Meet with law enforcement to discuss public safety issues in THE DISTRICTS and ways to address the 

issues. 

• Investigate commercial establishments and multi-family complexes to determine if they are violating 

Chapter 125 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. 

• Take legal action to persuade and compel owners and residents to comply with laws and regulations that 

impact the quality oflife within THE DISTRICTS. 

• Speak to community organizations and law enforcement in THE DISTRICTS regarding the Jaw and public 

safety issues. 

• Address violations of state laws, County regulations and Ordinances relating to health, safe!)! and welfare 

in THE DISTRICTS. 

• Attend hearings, trials and courtroom proceedings that relate to civil action against properties in THE 

DISTRICTS. 

• Visit properties and locations in THE DISTRICTS where violations of the law are suspected and/or 

reported. 

• Meet with property owners in THE DISTRICTS to address complaints and crime that impact the quality of 

life within THE DISTRICTS. 

o Attend Continuing Legal Education and training related to nuisance abatement and public safely issues that 

affect THE DISTRICTS. 

THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will also coordinate and facilitate interaction and efforts with appropriate Jaw enforcement 
agencies, to include the Harris County District Attorney, the Harris County Sheriff, Harris County Constables, municipal Jaw 
enforcement agencies, state agencies, and other counties as appropriate and required. 

THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will be guided by the enforcement priorities communicated from THE DISTRICTS. THE 
DISTRICTS will designate one or more individuals to communicate with the assigned COUNTY ATTORNEY personnel 
and to coordinate the activities of such personnel and THE DISTRICTS. The designees of THE DISTRJCTS will endeavor 
fo provide substantially equal coverage of each of the individual districts with regard to services provided under this 
Agreement. 

LITIGATION EXPENSES 

THE DISTRICTS shall pay HARRIS COUNTY the actual and reasonable litigation expenses incurred on litigation involving 
property in THE DISTRICT. The following categories are examples: expert fees; mediation fees; costs to serve defundants 
with process/citation; attorney ad litem fees for defendants served by publication; court costs; deposition costs; postage. Any 
single expense in excess of$1,000.00 must be approved by the designee of THE DISTRICTS before THE DISTRICTS is 
obligated. THE COUNTY ATTORNEY will provide THE DISTR1CTS with quarterly reports on expenses incuned and 
contemplated. 



CONSIDERA T!ON FOR SERVICES 

THE DISTRICTS shall pay HARRIS COUNTY the amount of $182,500 for personnel costs, and THE DISTRJCTS shall make payments which are due and payable, without demand, on the following dates in the amounts set forth ne,1:to the dates: 

$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,083 
$16,087 

March l, 2015 
April 1, 2015 
May I, 2015 
June 1, 2015 
July 1, 2015 
August 1, 2015 
September I, 2015 
October 1,2015 
November I, 2015 
December I, 2015 
January 1, 2016 
February l, 2016 

The monthly installment, are due and payable before !0:00 A.M. at the office of the County Treasurer, 1001 Preston Avenue, Suite 652, Houston, Texas 77002. 

If this Agreement is terminated at any time other than at the end of a contract month, the monthly installment or payment for such contract month will be prorated. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

8. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive an update and discuss a Memorandum of Understanding by and between the 
Hobby Area District and Scenic Houston for the funding and maintenance of streetscapes 
on Broadway Boulevard. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888..{)3 l 4 



Memorandum of Understanding Update 

The second memorandum of understanding between Scenic Houston and HAMD 
continues to be under aggressive discussion with the intent to bring the document to 
the Board for approval in April. 

More specifically, Scenic Houston, HAMD staff and Clark Condon Associates have been 
in close coordination to align design and construction schedules against a realistic 
funding timeline. This critical step in the process addresses the reality of making physical 
improvements to a corridor through fundraising, the large majority of which depends 
upon foundations and private corporation funds. The attached spreadsheet aligns 
highlights design and construction costs and necessary resources quarterly through 
completion of the project and initiation of maintenance. All project estimates assume a 
notice to proceed for design work beginning in late May or early June - which 
represents the latest estimated time that design work can commence and still anticipate 
completion by Super Bowl LI. 

In correspondence, Clark Condon Associates is also amending the design contract to 
allow design improvements to be completed in stages as funding becomes available. 
While all parties expect the project to be fully funded and to be completed on time, the 
parties have recognized the fact that a possibility exists for that funds are not available 
in the timely manner that is expected. The measure is a project management safeguard. 
Therefore, if Scenic Houston is only able to raise $5 million of the estimated $7.5 million 
needed to complete the project, then specific improvements (such as landscaping and 
installation of trees) will be made while others will be completed as other funds become 
available. 

Fundraising efforts and the cost schedule have been designed to allow HAMD and CCA 
to be compensated before funds are allocated to construction. HAMD is scheduled to be 
compensated within current fiscal year. 



Cash Flow Projection • DRAFT 
Broadway Project 

February 2015 thru January 2017 
Presented to Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

d 

' 

lO 

56 
lO 

___ ,.,_. ·---·-·· ---·- ···-···--·- •• JOO 
Total Contributions 7.S26.S66 

Expense task or project 

I 

Softscape {landscape and solij 
Hardscape (piths, curbs, crosswalk$, pavers) 
Ughtlng, Electrical, Site Furniture &Amenities 
Street Enhancements and retroflttlng 
Professional Design Costs 
Site Prep and DemollUon (tree protection) 
Project Management and Administration 
Initial Maintenance (2 years) 

Total Expenses 

Ending C&sh Balance 

Project Tlmellne 
Construction design and documentation 
Construction bid 
Construction let 
Project execution 

2, 359,398 
1,614,715 
1,236,855 

500,000 
499,500 
395,428 
820,670 

100,000 

7.526,566 

" of 
Total 

100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 
100% 
96" 

110" 
100% 

1001' 
1001' 

1001' 

1007' 

2015 

Jan-Mar I Aor-Jun I Jul-Seo I Ott·Dec 

0 U 7,40B 706,534 1,150,209 

60,000 250,000 850,000 
20,000 400,000 575,000 

125,000 

63000 

143000 650000 700000 850000 

. 
. . 135,000 

. . 550,000 
. . 180,000 180,000 

. 
15,592 70,874 76,326 92,681 

15.592 70..174 256 326 957 681 

127,408 706,514 1,150,209 1,042,S2II 

Quarterly 

2016 2017 

Jan-Mar I Anr•Jun I Ju~Se• I Beyond 

Oct-Dec Jan Jan2017 

1,042,528 663,SU 356,173 (23,719) (786,509) (790,509) 

. 425,000 600,000 975,000 

270,000 625,000 643,566 20,000 
800,000 325,000 500,000 

. . 
1070000 1-"50000 968 •66 11oonnn . 995nnn 

464,848 464,850 464,850 964,850 
403,679 403,679 403,679 403,679 
225,464 275,464 275,464 275,464 

139,500 
98,857 98,857 98,857 98,857 

116,669 114,488 105,609 119,940 108,491 

4,000 96,000 

1.449.1116 1.357 2
'" 1 ••• •sa 1,862 790 4000 204 491 

68.SU 356,173 (23,719) (716,509) (790,509) . ! 

-



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

9. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a FY 2015 annual operation District budget. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRis COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box22I67 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

January through December 2014 

-"!!F!!!"!Y'"'2""0""15.,...._ 

Proposed 
Budget 

SOURCES OF FUNDS 

District Assessments 
Penalty & Interest Revenue 
Overpayments 
Assessment Refunds 
Street Light Reimbursement 
Grants and Donations 
Interest Revenue 

Total SOURCES OF FUNDS 

TOTAL SOURCES 

USES OF FUNDS 

Public Safety 
Contract Public Safety 
Apartment Life Initiatives 
Mobile Cameras 
Street Light Outage Survey 
Graffiti Abatement 

Total Public Safety 

Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 
Porter Service 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 

Business & Economic Development 
Economic Development Programs 
Events, Festivals, Comm. Proj. 
Creative ED Support 
Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 

Total Business & Economic Development 

1,475,516 
20,000 
14,000 

-24,000 
134,678 
40,000 

300 
1,660,494 

1,660,494 

202,180 
25,000 
28,800 

2,100 
33,500 

291,580 

52,500 

52,500 

162,000 
37,000 
71,700 
28,000 

298,700 

Page 1 of3 



Hobby Area Management District 

Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 
January through December 2014 

Administration 
Exec & Board Support Services 

Administration & Management 
Meeting Expense 
Reimbursable Expenses 
Postage 
Office Supplies 
Public Notices, Advertising 

Total Exec & Board Support Services 

Legal Services 
Audit Services 
Bookkeeping 
Assessment Billing 
Assessment Database Mgmt. 
Office Equipment 
Insurance 
Other 

Total Administration 

Community Development Fund 
Hobby Fest 

Committee Support and Supplies 
Marketing and Promotional Items 
Creative Services 

Other Community Projects 
Total Community Development Fund 

Capital Projects 
Fund Reserve for District Office 
Broadway Blvd. Hardscape 
Livable Centers Grant Match 
CIP/Project Manager 

Total Capital Projects 

Total USES OF FUNDS 

NET SOURCES VS USES 

Cash on Hand Beginning of Year 

_.,.F .. Y,_2,_0 .. 15 .... _ 

Proposed 
Budget 

111,504 
5,000 
8,000 

100 
1,400 
1,200 

127,204 

30,000 
3,000 
7,200 

22,500 
3,600 
3,000 
1,500 

700 

198,704 

4,000 
16,000 
5,000 

15,000 

40,000 

50,000 
557,432 

53,750 
48,600 

709,782 

1,591,266 

69,228 

428,278 

Page 2 of 3 



Hobby Area Management District 

Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 
January through December 2014 

TOTAL PLANNED RESERVES 

-""F""Y.-2""'0""1""5-

Proposed 
Budget 

497,505 

Page 3 of 3 



HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 

FOR YOUR 
INFORMATION 



MEETING 
----+X+----= 
MARCH 9, 2015 

6:00PM - 8:30PM 
HOBBY DOUBLE TREE 

8181 AIRPORT BLVD. 
HOUSTON 77061 


